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As at 31st March, 2021, the Group recorded revenue of HK$517,246,000 (2020:
HK$1,042,397,000), representing a decrease of 50.4% as compared with the
same period last year. Included in the amount of revenue, HK$351,570,000
(2020: HK$836,040,000) was derived from the cosmetics business, representing
a decrease of 57.9% over the same period last year and 68.0% of the Group’s
total revenue (2020: 80.2%). The revenue of the fashion business amounted to
HK$165,676,000 (2020: HK$206,357,000), representing a decrease of 19.7% as
compared with the same period last year.

During the year, the global outbreak of the epidemic of the novel coronavirus (the
“Pandemic”) continued to affect the operations of retail stores, with the number of
visitors to Hong Kong dropping significantly due to the immigration control and
quarantine measures imposed by governments around the world. Local sales were
also weak due to social distancing measures, which led to decreases in the turnover
of both the cosmetics and fashion business segments of the Group. During the year,
the Group recorded a loss of HK$184,882,000 (2020: loss of HK$258,448,000),

representing a decrease of 28.5% as compared with the same period last year.

During the year, the cosmetics business recorded a segment loss of
HK$104,898,000 (2020: a loss of HK$173,718,000), and the fashion business
recorded a segment loss of HK$34,318,000 (2020: a loss of HK$57,202,000).
During the year, the Group recognised impairment for property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets and has made provision for onerous lease
contracts of relevant loss-making stores together with provisions for inventories
and others. During the year ended 31st March, 2021, the said provisions amounted
to approximately HK$61,798,000 (2020: HK$61,643,000) in aggregate. In
addition, the loss for the year included a decrease in fair value of investment
properties of HK$28,929,000 (2020: a decrease in fair value of HK$11,707,000).
Excluding the effect of the said non-cash impairment and provisions, the Group
would record a loss of approximately HK$94,155,000 in the financial year
(2020: a loss of HK$185,098,000), representing a decrease of 49.1% in losses as
compared with the same period last year. During the year, the Group recognised
HK$43,066,000 in the statement of profit or loss in respect of government anti-

epidemic allowances and subsidies.
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As at 31st March, 2021, the Group had 69 Colourmix and MORIMOR cosmetics
stores (31st March, 2020: 78 stores) in total, of which 63 stores were located
in Hong Kong and 6 stores were located in Macau. Since the outbreak of the
Pandemic in early 2020, the inbound tourism of Hong Kong and Macau was
hit and the consumption sentiment was dampened, and in particular the retail
industry was the first to bear the brunt and the Group has suspended the operation
of certain cosmetics stores located at the border gateways. During the year,
the turnover of the Group’s cosmetics business amounted to HK$351,570,000
(2020: HK$836,040,000), representing a decrease of 57.9% as compared with
the same period last year. The cosmetics business recorded a segment loss of
HK$104,898,000 (2020: a loss of HK$173,718,000). During the year, the Group
recognised impairment for property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
of the loss-making cosmetics stores, and has made provision for onerous lease
contracts and inventories totalling HK$47,166,000 (2020: HK$49,516,000).
Excluding the effect of the said non-cash impairment and provisions, the cosmetics
business would have recorded a loss of approximately HK$57,732,000 for this
financial year (2020: a loss of HK$124,202,000), representing a decrease of 53.5%
as compared with the same period last year.
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As at 31st March, 2021, the Group had a total of 83 fashion stores (31st March,
2020: 78 stores) under the brands Veeko and Wanko across Hong Kong, Macau
and the PRC, with 63 stores located in Hong Kong, 5 stores located in Macau and
15 stores located in the PRC. During the year, the turnover of the Group’s fashion
business was HK$165,676,000 (2020: HK$206,357,000), representing a decrease
of 19.7% as compared with the same period last year. The Group has recorded a
segment loss of HK$34,318,000 (2020: a loss of HK$57,202,000) for the fashion
business segment. During the year, the Group recognised the impairment for
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets and has made provision
for onerous lease contracts of the loss-making fashion stores. Together with
inventories and other provisions, the Group has made provision of HK$14,632,000
(2020: HK$12,127,000) in aggregate for the year ended 31st March, 2021.
Excluding the effect of the said non-cash impairment and provisions, the fashion
business would have recorded a loss of approximately HK$19,686,000 for the
financial year (2020: a loss of HK$45,075,000), representing a decrease of 56.3%
as compared with the same period last year.
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The outbreak of the epidemic in early 2020 has since developed into a massive
transnational pandemic that has brought challenges to different industries and the
society as a whole. The Group has assessed the overall impact of the situation on its
business and has taken feasible and effective anti-epidemic measures to safeguard
the employees and customers. In the face of an exceptionally difficult operating
environment, the management has immediately taken a number of contingency
measures to reduce costs in order to preserve working capital, including proactively
lowering inventory levels, stringently controlling costs and expenditures, as well as
negotiating with landlords for rent concessions for most retail stores. In addition,
among a total of 137 retail stores in Hong Kong and Macau as of 31st March, 2021,
the leases of over 70% of the stores will expire within the financial year 2021/2022.
The Group will have more bargaining power to renegotiate with the landlords in
relation to the leases when they expire during the year. The Group will thus be
able to renew its leases on a short-term basis with a greater reduction in rent, or
close down certain loss-making retail stores where the reduction in rent are not
satisfactory. This will help to strengthen the Group’s liquidity position.

As the production resources of the Group’s fashion business are concentrated in
self-owned plant in China, we are able to control costs with flexibility. In face
of the tough operating environment, the Group has immediately arranged for a
reduction in production, proactively lowered inventory levels and maintained cash
flows, and at the same time leased out some of the floors to earn rental income.
Unlike the cosmetics business, the customers of the fashion business are primarily
local consumers, hence, our fashion business was less affected by the drop in the
number of visitors caused by the Pandemic than the cosmetics business, and it
also recovered more quickly. In fact, the sales of the fashion business dropped less
during the year, so its loss amount was also less than that of the cosmetics business.
In April and May, 2021, the same-store sales of fashion business in Hong Kong
and Macau recorded an increase of approximately 15% as compared with the same
period last year, while the sales in China recorded an increase of more than 55%. In
respect of the cosmetics business, the same-store sales in Hong Kong and Macau in
April and May, 2021 also recorded an increase of approximately 65% as compared

with the same period last year.
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Looking ahead, despite the recent acceleration in the approval of use of vaccines
in countries, the repeated outbreaks and the mutated virus strains have created
uncertainties. As the Pandemic has not yet stabilized, the retail market is
projected to remain dominated by local consumption in year 2021/2022, and the
number of visitors to Hong Kong is unlikely to recover in the short term. During
the Pandemic, consumption patterns have also shifted from offline to online.
Since consumers spend more time using online shopping platforms, the role of
e-commerce has become increasingly important. Therefore, in addition to physical
retail stores, the Group will continue to collaborate with well-known e-commerce
platforms in the future, such as Tmall Global, Kaola, JD, WeChat Mini Program,
etc., and focus on both online and offline businesses to drive the growth of the
cosmetics and fashion businesses, enhance brand awareness, expand customer
base and increase turnover. Apart from leasing out some of the floors in its self-
owned plant as referred to above, the Group also leased out some of its self-owned
properties located in Hong Kong to further increase source of rental income.
Currently, the Group has sufficient cash on hand, together with available banking
facilities, to meet its business needs. Furthermore, the Group is principally engaged
in cosmetics and fashion retail operations, but also holds investment properties
and self-occupied properties at the same time. Based on the valuation conducted
by Jones Lang LaSalle Limited and Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and
Advisory Limited, independent qualified professional valuers, the valuation of
such properties amounted to approximately HK$677,474,000 in aggregate as at
31st March, 2021. These properties also serve as financial support for the Group.
The Group will continue to manage its financial and cash position prudently.
Despite all the challenges ahead, the Group will continue to focus on its business
and take a number of contingency measures, which include but are not limited to
negotiating rent reduction with landlords, proactively lowering inventory levels,
and stringently controlling costs and expenditures, in order to cope with the
challenges ahead, and hope to reach breakeven as soon as possible.
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At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s cash and bank balances (mainly in
Hong Kong dollar and Renminbi) amounted to HK$47,114,000 (31st March, 2020:
HK$26,476,000). The outstanding bank borrowings (mainly in Hong Kong Dollar)
amounted to HK$389,494,000 (31st March, 2020: HK$420,059,000).

At the end of the reporting period, the current ratio was 0.54 (31st March, 2020:
0.72) and the gearing ratio of the Group was 1.98 (31st March, 2020: 1.19) which
was calculated based on the Group’s total borrowings of HK$389,494,000 (31st
March, 2020: HK$420,059,000) and the total equity of HK$196,416,000 (31st
March, 2020: HK$354,364,000).

At 31st March, 2021, the Group had banking facilities amounting to
HK$479,571,000 (31st March, 2020: HK$515,015,000), of which
HK$395,166,000 (31st March, 2020: HK$428,624,000) was utilised by the Group.

For the details of the cash flow management of the Group, please refer to the

“Prospects” section of the “Management Discussion and Analysis”.

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign currency purchases (mainly in
United States Dollar and Euro), which expose the Group to foreign currency risk.
Approximately 57% (2020: 39%) of purchases costs are in foreign currencies
for the year. The management closely monitors foreign exchange exposure and
will consider hedging significant foreign currency risk by entering into forward
contracts should the need arises.
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At the end of the reporting period, the amount of assets pledged by the Group
to certain banks to secure general banking facilities granted to the Group was
HK$429,439,000 (31st March, 2020: HK$439,360,000).

At 31st March, 2021, the Company had provided guarantees of HK$737,388,000
(31st March, 2020: HK$729,582,000) to certain banks in respect of banking

facilities granted to certain subsidiaries of the Company.

At 31st March, 2021, the Group had approximately 1,100 employees (31st March,
2020: approximately 1,300). The Group mainly determines staff remuneration
(including insurance and medical benefits) in accordance with the industry’s
practices. The Group also implemented a reward scheme for its staff based on their
individual performance. In addition to their basic remuneration and welfare, some
key employees were granted share options as reward and incentive to enhance their
loyalty to the Group.

On behalf of the Board, I would like to extend my heartfelt thanks to all the
employees for their devotion, contribution and diligence and my deepest gratitude
to all the shareholders, customers, suppliers and business partners for their

continuous support.

Cheng Chung Man, Johnny
Chairman
Hong Kong, 11th July, 2021
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The directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2021.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities of its
principal subsidiaries are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

Review and Performance of the Year and Principal Risks and Uncertainties

A review of the business of the Group during the year and its future development,
an analysis of the Group’s performance using financial key performance indicators
and a description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group are
provided in the “Chairman’s Statement” section on pages 5 to 11 of this annual
report, which constitute part of this directors’ report. The capital risk management
and financial risk management objectives and policies of the Group are shown in
notes 34 and 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Company is committed to the sustainable development of the environment
and our society. The Group has endeavoured to comply with laws and regulations
regarding environmental protection and adopted effective environmental policies
to ensure its projects meet the required standards and ethics.

Compliance with Relevant Laws and Regulations

During the year under review, as far as the Board of Directors (the “Board”) and
management are aware, there was no material breach of or non-compliance with the
applicable laws and regulations by the Group that has a significant impact on the
businesses and operations of the Group.

Key Relationships with Stakeholders

The Company recognises that our employees, customers and suppliers and business
associates are key stakeholders to the Company’s success. We strive to achieve
corporate sustainability through engaging our employees, providing quality
products and services to our customers, collaborating with business partners
(including suppliers and contractors) to deliver quality sustainable products and

services and supporting our community.
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Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st March, 2021 are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page
53 of the annual report.

No interim dividend was declared for the year. The Board has decided not to
declare a final dividend for the year ended 31st March, 2021.

Share Capital

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the year are set
out in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

Distributable Reserves of the Company

In the opinion of the directors, the Company’s reserves available for distribution to
its shareholders as at 31st March, 2021 comprise of contributed surplus amounting
to HK$53,135,000 and net of accumulated loss amounting to HK$133,508,000
(2020: contributed surplus amounting to HK$53,135,000 and retained profits of
HK$1,478,000) provided that, after the distribution, the Company will be able to
pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.
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The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Mr. CHENG Chung Man, Johnny (Chairman)
Ms. LAM Yuk Sum (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. LAM Man Tin

Mr. AU-YEUNG Hau Cheong
Mr. CHENG Man Loong, Monty
Mr. YEUNG Wing Kay

In accordance with article 108 of the Company’s Articles of Association, Ms.
Lam Yuk Sum and Mr. Au-Yeung Hau Cheong shall retire by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (“AGM”). Both of the above
retiring directors, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

Each of the executive directors has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for a term of three years which should be renewable for each term of
three years until terminated by either party by three months’ prior written notice.
The non-executive director and each of the independent non-executive directors

has signed an appointment letter with the Company for a term of two years.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors being proposed for re-election at the
AGM has a service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is
not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of compensation,

other than statutory compensation.
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No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed during
the year.

During the year and up to the date of this directors’ report, a permitted indemnity
provision (as defined under section 469 of the Companies Ordinance Cap. 622 of
Laws of Hong Kong (“Companies Ordinance”)), for the benefit of the directors of

the Company has been and is still in force.

Mr. CHENG Chung Man, Johnny (former name: Cheng Tsang Man), aged 64, is the
chairman of the Group. He is also the chairman of the nomination committee and
a member of the remuneration committee of the Board. He established the Group
in 1984 and is responsible for the overall strategic planning and formulation of
corporate policies of the Group. Mr. Cheng has over 37 years of experience in the
manufacturing and retail business. Mr. Cheng was awarded the Young Industrialist
Awards of Hongkong in November 2001 and the Ernst & Young Entrepreneur
Award of the Year 2012 China in November 2012. He is the husband of Ms. Lam
Yuk Sum.

Ms. LAM Yuk Sum, aged 61, is the chief executive officer of the Group and a
member of each of the remuneration committee and nomination committee of the
Board. She is responsible for the day-to-day management of the Group, specifically
the merchandising management and design and product development. She joined
the Group in 1987 and has over 34 years of experience in fashion design and retail

business. She is the wife of Mr. Cheng Chung Man, Johnny.
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Mr. LAM Man Tin, aged 62, has been an independent non-executive director
of the Company since 2nd February, 2016 and re-designated as a non-executive
director with effect from 13th July, 2018. He was a member of each of the audit
committee, remuneration committee and nomination committee of the Board from
2nd February, 2016 to 12th July, 2018. He graduated from the University of Hull
with a master degree in strategic marketing (distance learning) in July 1996. Mr.
Lam joined Aeon Stores Co., Ltd. in 1992 and has over 25 years of experience in
retail and service industries. He was an executive director of Aeon Stores (Hong
Kong) Co., Limited (“Aeon Stores HK”), a company listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (stock code:
984) from May 1999 to May 2012. Mr. Lam served as the managing director of
Aeon Stores HK from May 2006 to May 2012. Following his resignation from the
board of directors of Aeon Stores HK, he was engaged as a consultant of Aeon
Stores HK until September 2012. Mr. Lam was an independent non-executive
director, a member of each of the audit committee and the remuneration committee
and the chairman of the nomination committee of S. Culture International Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 1255) from May 2013 to July 2017. He has been the chief executive officer
strategist of Shirble Department Store Holdings (China) Limited, a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 312) from September 2013
to July 2020. He is also the founding member of the Hong Kong Yau Yat Chuen
Lions Club.



MEESEE 125 BZE—/\Ft
AT=HRABAAABEILIFNITES - &
TRESEEREZES REZESkH
MEEE2KE - RE —NLEtTFREM
ERETEREEELR - R—NLtZF
ZRAZE-TTMFE+A  BGEEER
REEEMERBER AT - BEF AT
RIBEFFIAKIE - B EER _TZT N
FT-AZ_TTN\FTAEBRREEE
BAERAG - BEF AT T8 B 1 & 36T
ZEEHEXE RNZZT—HFN\AZE=
Z—RFMOA  BEEEETHESREM
(BB )BERERAA(AIBRSERER
AR (RERFAAIFER ET 228 - i’RH
5% - 8101) 2 BWIMITES  IREEB
BERE  URFMEESREREZESK
8.
BXREEE 745 BZZE—NFNA
ZHANBRABARRBILIERITES o K
NMRESTEREZES  FTMEEGRIE
BEBEZKE - BEAEMAERNE
5 HERBETERBELELR - KA
—NANFREEHEAELE - R—ASN
FE_T—_F  BELEEBRTBEAR
7] * B #ENasta (Hong Kong)Limited * = 2
REMEERNE S © IHE REIEET -

BKESLE 6858 B-FTZTHFNA
TERBAARBBIIFATES - BT
RESEERZEENTHEZES 2R
URIEEREGZKE - WARES
B - S RBEEET(—KEE S
TIZABA  BEEEUFER - HEX
REEFXAR  HELEGRBEELE

fiz o

Mr. AU-YEUNG Hau Cheong, aged 72, has been as an independent non-executive
director of the Company since 13th July, 2018. He is also a member of each of
the audit committee, the nomination committee and the remuneration committee
of the Board. He has obtained extensive experience in property leasing industry
since 1970. From March 1970 to December 2004, Mr. Au-Yeung worked at Sun
Hung Kai Real Estate Agency Limited and his last position was general manager at
the leasing department. Mr. Au-Yeung worked at The Link Management Limited
from December 2004 to October 2008 and his last position was head of project
leasing at the project leasing department. Mr. Au-Yeung was an independent non-
executive director, the chairman of the nomination committee, a member of each of
the remuneration committee and the audit committee of EJE (Hong Kong) Holdings
Limited (formerly known as Jia Meng Holdings Limited), a company listed on the
Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8101), from August
2015 to April 2016.

Mr. CHENG Man Loong, Monty, aged 74, has been an independent non-executive
director of the Company since 26th September, 2019. He is also a member of each
of the audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination committee of the
Board. Mr. Cheng has extensive experience in trading, sale and manufacturing of
toy products. He has been engaged in relevant business since 1968. Mr. Cheng
worked at various companies, including Nasta (Hong Kong) Limited, that were
principally engaged in trading, sale and manufacturing of toy products between
1968 and 2012.

Mr. YEUNG Wing Kay, aged 68, has been an independent non-executive director
of the Company since 17th September, 2004. He is also the chairman of each of
the audit committee and remuneration committee and a member of the nomination
committee of the Board. He is a Certified Public Accountant (Practising) and has
been a partner of Yeung & Cheuk, a firm of Certified Public Accountants in Hong
Kong for over 24 years. He graduated from the Chinese University of Hong Kong
with a degree of Bachelor of Social Sciences.



BEERLL - 525 AEEPBRE - IR
REDRMRAME - ELER NN
FLAMAREER - BERR —RER
SEHRIITRMEERE - BEFABFBWTWA
Bt R8 T8 - WRAKRBEARZETA

AREERGENBEGIMAEEE -

B X BB RIS  REBECE
“—F=A=1t—BHLLFE  ARFELE
#a] LR A IR 88 1 o

BEARTIR-_Z—=E/\A=TEEH
ZREEFRE « AR AR FRA—E
BERETE - R —F=f=+—
H BERESESKRTFHRMESAME
)E] °

AEBFRNZ BIREE 2 FBHREE
B s R R FI7E29 o

RAFER - ARAHERESRTER
R B ARE - AR BITR T IR E R
1T FBRRE -

Ms. WONG Chi Ying, aged 52, is the financial controller of the Group and also the
company secretary of the Company. Prior to joining the Group in July 1996, Ms.
Wong worked in an international accounting firm for about four years. She holds
a bachelor degree in accountancy from the City University of Hong Kong. She is a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the United
Kingdom and an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

Save as the Share Option Scheme set out below, during the year ended 31st
March, 2021, the Company did not have newly entered or existing equity-linked

agreements.

Pursuant to the AGM of the Company held on 30th August, 2013, the Company
approved and adopted a share option scheme. The remaining life of the share option
scheme is two years and five months as at 31st March, 2021.

Particulars of the share option scheme adopted by the Group are set out in note 29

to the consolidated financial statements.

No options were granted to the directors or substantial shareholders of the
Company during the year or outstanding under the share option scheme.
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9th January, 2017 to
8th January, 2020

“E-t5-AhAZ
“E22E-AN\R
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24th April, 2021

“ERE-AARE
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9th January, 2020 to
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“E--E-AhAZ
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9th January, 2022 to
8th January, 2024
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29th January, 2026 to
28th January, 2028

and movements in such holdings during the year ended 31st March, 2021:

The following table discloses details of options held by employees of the Group

R-B-%F REER REER REER REER  WoB=-F
BRITERE BA-A R itk i %% =ZA=t-A
Exercise k3] Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed HATE
price Balance during during during during  Outstanding
per share at 1.4.2020 the year the year the year theyear  at 31.3.2021
0.2250; 7 12,160,000 - - - (12,160,000) -
HK$0.2250
0.3000%7 1,920,000 - - - (300,000) 1,620,000
HK$0.3000
0.1832%7 2,500,000 - - - - 2,500,000
HKS0.1832
0.18327 2,500,000 - - - - 2,500,000
HKS0.1832
0.0534# - 19,300,000 - - - 19,300,000
HKS$0.0534
0.0534%T - 19,300,000 - - - 19,300,000
HKS0.0534
19,080,000 38,600,000 - - (12460,000) 45,220,000

Company as at the date of this report.

The closing price of the shares of the Company immediately before 29th January
2021, the date of grant of share options, was HK$0.052.

The total number of shares available for issue under the share option scheme is

145,534,764, represent approximately 5.78% of the issued share capital of the
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As at 31st March, 2021, the interests of the directors and the chief executive officer

in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated

corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures

Ordinance (“SFO”)), as recorded in the register maintained by the Company

pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and

the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by

Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in the Rules Governing

the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), were as

follows:

EEpRE Name of director
L3 Mr. Cheng Chung Man, Johnny
MEHRZ L Ms. Lam Yuk Sum

(7TTEABE) (Chief Executive Officer)
et - % % 1,393,347,737 B% {5 E Silver  Note:

Crown Profits Limited ([ Silver Crown ])
BEm A o Silver CrownH &5 J5
% 1#£{55EThe J Cheng Family Trustf]
EREAFRE  ZEREAENER
ABIEBEEERMRERZ LH

Bip Mg
Capacity/
Nature of interest

BIFAREEREA
Founder and
Beneficiary of Trust

BEmEEA

Beneficial owner

EREREA
Beneficiary of Trust

EmfEA A

Beneficial owner

e e #T
ZRERHE

Number of issued
ordinary shares held

1,393,347,737
(Htat)
(Note)

185,219,227

1,578,566,964

RN E B BT

RAE 3L
Percentage of the
issued share capital
of the Company

62.69%

1,393,347,737
(Hi7)
(Note)

272,916,013

1,666,263,750

66.17%

These 1,393,347,737 shares are beneficially owned by Silver Crown Profits

Limited (“Silver Crown”). The shares in Silver Crown are in turn held by the
trustee of The J Cheng Family Trust, a discretionary trust, the discretionary
objects of which include family members of Mr. Cheng Chung Man, Johnny and
Ms. Lam Yuk Sum.
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Other than disclosed above and certain nominee shares in subsidiaries held by
certain directors in trust for the Group, none of the directors and the chief executive
officer had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of part XV of the SFO) as at 31st March, 2021, as required to be recorded
in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.

Other than the share option scheme of the Company, at no time during the year was
the Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries,
a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive directors,
an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers that all of the independent non-executive directors

are independent.

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance, to which the Company,
its holding company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party
and in which a director of the Company or an entity connected with a director (as
defined under Section 486 of the Companies Ordinance) had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

The Company confirms that the related party transaction as disclosed in note 31 to
the consolidated financial statements is connected transaction that falls under the
de minimis transactions exemption and is fully exempt under Rule 14A.76 of the
Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other connected transactions/continuing
connected transactions which are required to be disclosed in this annual report in
accordance with the requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Name of shareholder

Silver Crown

Well Feel Group Limited
(“Well Feel”)

HSBC International Trustee Limited
(“HSBC International”)

w3t -

Silver Crown,Z 2 #BE 21T AR AN FH Well Feel ¥
A - MWell Feel JHSBC International Z & &
BT - RIEFEFES KBGO BEXVIBIEX
ZFRTE * Well Feel XHSBC International ¥ H
AR ER Z S i Silver CrownE B RS Z FT A
ARARIRD P EE R

Other than disclosed above under the section headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executive Officer’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures” and other substantial shareholders’ interests disclosed in the following
table, at 31st March, 2021, the register of substantial shareholders maintained by
the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO showed that the Company had
not been notified by any persons (other than the directors and the chief executive
officer) of any other relevant interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company.

AATERIT
a1 RABDLE
EZEREE Percentage of the

Number of issued

B3 REEtE

Capacity/Nature of interest

issued share capital

ordinary shares held of the Company

EmEAA 1,393,347,737 55.34%
Beneficial owner
{2 2 W (AT aE) 1,393,347,737 55.34%
Interest of a controlled

corporation (Note)
=EA(KIEE) 1,393,347,737 55.34%

Trustee (Note)

Note:

The entire issued share capital of Silver Crown was held by Well Feel which in turn was
a wholly-owned subsidiary of HSBC International. By virtue of the provisions of Part
XV of the SFO, each of Well Feel and HSBC International was deemed to be interested
in all the shares of the Company in which Silver Crown was interested.
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During the year, the aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest
suppliers and the aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five largest customers
were less than 50% of the Group’s total purchases and total sales for the year,
respectively.

None of the directors, their close associates or any shareholders of the Company
(which to the knowledge of the directors own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued shares) had an interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers or
suppliers.

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles of
Association, or the applicable laws of the Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in
which the Company was incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer

new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders of the Company.

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

The emolument policy of the senior management of the Group is set up by
the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are recommended to the Board by
the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to directors
and eligible employees and details of the scheme are set out in note 29 to the

consolidated financial statements.
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Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the directors, the Company has maintained a sufficient public float
throughout the year ended 31st March, 2021 and up to the latest practicable date
prior to the issue of this annual report as required under the Listing Rules.

Events after the Reporting Period

There is no material subsequent event undertaken by the Company or by the Group
after 31st March, 2021 and up to the date of this annual report.

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021
have been audited by Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, who will retire at the
conclusion of the AGM and offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution
will be submitted to the AGM to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as
auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Cheng Chung Man, Johnny
Chairman

Hong Kong, 11th July, 2021

Veeko  wanko
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The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company hereby presents this
Corporate Governance Report in the Group’s annual report for the year ended 31st
March, 2021.

Recognising the importance of a publicly listed company’s responsibilities
to enhance its transparency and accountability, the Company is committed
to maintain a high standard of corporate governance in the interests of its
shareholders. The Board believes that good corporate governance standards are
essential in providing a framework for the Company to safeguard the interests of
shareholders and to enhance corporate value and accountability.

The Company has applied the principles and code provisions as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

The Board is of the view that the Company has complied with all the code
provisions as set out in the CG Code throughout the year ended 31st March, 2021.

The Company continues to review its corporate governance practices in order
to enhance its corporate governance standard, to comply with the increasingly
tightened regulatory requirements and to meet the rising expectations of
shareholders and investors.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
as its own code of conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions. Having
made specific enquiries, all of the directors confirmed that they have complied with
the required standards as set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31st
March, 2021.

The Company has also established written guidelines on terms no less exacting
than the Model Code (the “Employees Written Guidelines”) for securities
transactions by employees who are likely to possess inside information of the
Company. No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines by
the employees was noted by the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and performance
and should take decisions objectively in the best interests of the Company.

The Board regularly reviews the contribution required from a director to perform
his/her responsibilities to the Company, and whether the director is spending
sufficient time performing them.

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises six members, consisting of two executive directors,
one non-executive director and three independent non-executive directors.

The following chart shows the diversity profile of the Board as at 31st March,
2021:

=
Management
==\
Chinese
@
= A
Accounting
S R E— —
i F4485) iR w4
L Length of .
Ethnicity Age Group . Expertise
Service

The biographical information of the directors are set out in the section headed
“Directors’ Report” on pages 15 to 17 of this annual report.

Save that Mr. Cheng Chung Man, Johnny and Ms. Lam Yuk Sum are husband
and wife, there are no financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationships among members of the Board.

colourmixey MoriMor O  VOCKO  Wanko
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There is a clear division in the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
which are performed by different individuals. This ensures a balanced distribution
of power and authority.

Mr. Cheng Chung Man, Johnny, the Chairman of the Board, is responsible for the
leadership for and management of the Board, ensuring the effective functioning
of the Board and encouraging directors to make full and active contribution to the
Board’s affairs as well as ensuring that all significant and key issues are discussed
and where required, resolved by the Board in a timely manner.

Ms. Lam Yuk Sum, the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, is responsible for
the day-to-day management of the Company. She is responsible for implementing
the Company’s strategy, objectives and policies approved and delegated by the
Board with the assistance of the senior management.

The husband and wife relationship between Mr. Cheng Chung Man, Johnny and
Ms. Lam Yuk Sum does not impair the balance of power between the Board and the
management as their duties and responsibilities are clearly defined and set out in

writing.

During the year ended 31st March, 2021, the Company has at all times met
the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least
three independent non-executive directors with at least one of them possessing
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial

management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each independent
non-executive director in respect of his independence in accordance with the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is

of the view that all independent non-executive directors are independent.
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Each of the directors of the Company is engaged on a service agreement (for
executive director) or an appointment letter (for non-executive director and
independent non-executive director) for a term of 3 and 2 years respectively. The
appointment of executive director may be terminated by either party by giving

three months’ prior written notice.

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association (“Articles”), all directors of
the Company are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years
at the Company’s annual general meeting and any director appointed by the Board
to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall hold office until the
next following general meeting or the next following annual general meeting, as
the case may be, of the Company after his/her appointment and be subject to re-
election at such meeting.

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of, and promoting the
success of the Company. This is achieved by the setting up of corporate and
strategic objectives and policies, and the monitoring and evaluations of operating

activities and financial performance of the Company.

All the directors carry out their duties in good faith and in compliance with
applicable laws and regulations, taking decisions objectively and acting in the
interests of the Company and its shareholders at all times.

The Company has formalised and adopted written terms on the division of
functions reserved to the Board and those delegated to the management. The Board
reserves for its decision all major matters of the Company, including the approval
and monitoring of all policy matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control
and risk management systems, material transactions (in particular those that may
involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of directors and

other significant financial and operational matters.

The day-to-day management, administration and operations of the Company are
delegated to the Chief Executive Officer and senior management of the Company.
The Board has delegated a schedule of responsibilities to these officers for the
implementation of Board decisions. The Board periodically reviews the delegated
functions and work tasks. Prior to entering into any significant transactions, the

aforesaid officers have to obtain Board approval.
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All directors have full and timely access to all relevant information as well as
the advice and services of the Company Secretary and senior management, with
a view to ensuring compliance with Board procedures and all applicable laws
and regulations. Any director may request independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense, upon reasonable request

being made to the Board.

The Board conducts at least four regular Board meetings a year and additional
meetings are arranged as and when required to discuss significant issues, either in
person or by means of electronic or other communication facilities. Schedules for
annual meeting and draft agenda of each meeting are sent to all directors in advance
to enable them to have an opportunity to include matters in the agenda. Notice of at
least 14 days is given of a regular Board meeting. For other Board and committee
meetings, reasonable notice is generally given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable information are
despatched to all directors at least 3 days before each regular Board meeting to
ensure that the directors have sufficient time to review the related documents and
be adequately prepared for the meeting. The Board and each director also have
separate and independent access to the senior management whenever necessary.

The Company Secretary is responsible to keep minutes of all Board meetings and
committee meetings. Draft minutes are circulated to all directors for comments
within a reasonable time after each meeting and the final versions are open for
directors’ inspection.

The Company’s Articles contains provisions requiring directors to abstain from
voting and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings for approving transactions
in which such directors or any of their associates have a material interest.

Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and changes in order to
effectively perform their responsibilities and to ensure that their contribution to the

Board remains informed and relevant.
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Every newly appointed director will receive formal, comprehensive and tailored
induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company and full awareness
of directors’ responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant

statutory requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. Internally-facilitated briefings
for directors would be arranged and reading materials on relevant topics would be
provided to directors where appropriate.

According to the records maintained by the Company, the directors received the
following trainings during the year ended 31st March, 2021 with emphasis on their
roles, functions and duties as directors of a listed company:

3 2|4 F (i)
Type of Training Vo)

Name of Directors

Executive Directors

Mr. CHENG Chung Man, Johnny A, B
Ms. LAM Yuk Sum A, B
Non-executive Director

Mr. LAM Man Tin A, B

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. AU-YEUNG Hau Cheong B

Mr. CHENG Man Loong, Monty A, B

Mr. YEUNG Wing Kay A.B

Note:

Types of Training

A: Attending training sessions, including but not limited to, briefings, seminars,
conferences and workshops

B: Reading relevant news alerts, newspapers, journals, magazines and relevant

publications
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All the directors understand the importance of continuous professional
development and are committed to participating in any suitable training to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills.

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Remuneration
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Audit Committee, for overseeing
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the Company
are established with defined written terms of reference. The terms of reference
of all three committees are posted on the Company’s website and Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited’s website and are available to shareholders upon
request.

All members of the Audit Committee while the majority of the members of each
of the Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee are independent
non-executive directors and the list of the chairman and members of each Board
committee is set out under “Corporate Information” on pages 2 to 4 of this annual
report.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their
duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent professional

advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense.

The Remuneration Committee consists of all directors of the Company except Mr.
Lam Man Tin, the majority of them are independent non-executive directors.

The principal functions of the Remuneration Committee include reviewing and
making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure
of all directors and senior management remuneration and on the remuneration
packages of all directors and senior management. The Remuneration Committee is
also responsible for establishing formal and transparent procedures for developing
such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no director or any of his/
her associates will participate in deciding his/her own remuneration, which
remuneration will be determined by reference to the performance of the individual

and the Company as well as market practice and conditions.
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The Remuneration Committee held three meetings during the year ended 31st
March, 2021. During the meetings, the Remuneration Committee has performed
the following work: (i) reviewing and approving no bonus payment to directors
and senior management for the year 2020; (ii) reviewing the salary packages of all
directors and senior management; (iii) reviewing and recommending to the Board
regarding the remuneration package of a non-executive director and an independent
non-executive director upon renewal of their respective appointment letters; and
(iv) reviewing and recommending to the Board the granting of share options to
senior management.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, details of the remuneration of
the members of the senior management (other than directors) by band for the year
ended 31st March, 2021 are as follows:

EE AR
Number of
employees

Not exceeding HK$1,000,000 3

Details of the remuneration of each of the directors for the year ended 31st March,
2021 are set out in note 11 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Nomination Committee consists of all directors of the Company except Mr.

Lam Man Tin, the majority of them are independent non-executive directors.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the structure,
size and composition of the Board, identifying individuals suitably qualified
to become Board members, making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment and succession planning for directors, and assessing the independence

of independent non-executive directors.
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The Nomination Committee reviews annually the structure, size and composition
of the Board and where appropriate, make relevant recommendations on changes to
the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy. In assessing the Board
composition and identifying and selecting suitable candidates for directorships,
the Nomination Committee would take into account various aspects set out in the
Board Diversity Policy to implement the corporate strategy of the Company. The
Nomination Committee would discuss and agree on measurable objectives for
achieving diversity on the Board, where necessary, and recommend them to the
Board for adoption.

During the year ended 31st March, 2021, the Nomination Committee held two
meetings to recommend to the Board on the renewal of appointment of a non-
executive director and an independent non-executive director, to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board, to assess the independence of the
independent non-executive directors, and to consider the qualifications of the
retiring directors standing for election at the annual general meeting.

The Company has adopted a Board Diversity Policy which sets out the approach to
achieve diversity of the Board. The Company recognises and embraces the benefits
of having a diverse Board and sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in maintaining the Company’s competitive advantage.

Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, the Nomination Committee will review
annually the structure, size and composition of the Board and where appropriate,
make recommendations on changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy and to ensure that the Board maintains a balanced diverse
profile. In relation to reviewing and assessing the Board composition, the
Nomination Committee is committed to diversity at all levels and will consider
a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and

regional and industry experience.

The Company aims to maintain an appropriate balance of diversity perspectives
that are relevant to the Company’s business growth and is also committed to
ensuring that recruitment and selection practices at all levels (from the Board
downwards) are appropriately structured so that a diverse range of candidates are
considered.
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The Board will consider setting measurable objectives to implement the Board
Diversity Policy and review such objectives from time to time to ensure their
appropriateness and ascertain the progress made towards achieving those
objectives.

At present, the Nomination Committee considered that the Board is sufficiently

diverse and effective to complement the Company’s corporate strategy.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate,

to ensure its effectiveness.

The Board has delegated its responsibilities and authority for selection and

appointment of Directors to the Nomination Committee of the Company.

The Company has adopted a Nomination Policy which sets out the selection
criteria and process and the Board succession planning considerations in relation
to nomination and appointment of directors of the Company and aims to ensure
that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the Company and the continuity of the Board and appropriate
leadership at Board level.

The Nomination Policy sets out the factors for assessing the suitability and the
potential contribution to the Board of a proposed candidate, including but not
limited to the following:

. age, skills, knowledge, experience, expertise, professional and educational
qualifications, background, and other personal qualities of the candidates;

. effect on the Board’s composition and diversity;

. commitment of the candidate to devote sufficient time to effectively carry
out his/her duties. In this regard, the number and nature of offices held by
the candidate in public companies or organisations, and other executive
appointments or significant commitments will be considered;
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. potential/actual conflicts of interest that may arise if the candidate is
selected;

. independence of the candidate;

. in the case of a proposed re-appointment of an independent non-executive

director, the number of years he/she has already served; and

. other factors considered to be relevant by the Nomination Committee on a
case by case.

The Nomination Policy also sets out the procedures for the selection and
appointment of new Directors and re-election of Directors at general meetings.
During the year ended 31st March, 2021, there was no change in the composition
of the Board.

The Audit Committee comprises all the three independent non-executive directors
with the chairman of which possesses the appropriate professional qualifications
and accounting expertise. None of the committee members is a former partner of

the Company’s external auditor.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are: to oversee the Company’s
relationship with the external auditor; to review the financial information; to
oversee the Company’s financial reporting system, risk management and internal
control systems; and to review the effectiveness of the internal audit function,
arrangements to enable employees to raise concerns about possible improprieties in

financial reporting, internal control or other matters of the Company.

During the year ended 31st March, 2021, the Audit Committee held five meetings
of which the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer attended four
of these meetings. A summary of work performed by the Audit Committee during

the year was as follows:

(1) reviewed and commented on audited annual results for the year ended 31st
March, 2020 and unaudited interim results for the six months ended 30th
September, 2020 respectively;
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(i) reviewed the business performance for the three months ended 30th June,
2020 and nine months ended 31st December, 2020;

(iii)  reviewed the scope of audit work, auditors’ remuneration and terms of

engagement and recommending re-appointment of auditor;

(iv)  reviewed the effectiveness of the systems of financial reporting and internal
control including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk

management functions of the Group;

(v) reviewed and approved the internal audit plan for year 2020/2021;

(vi)  reviewed the questionnaires issued by the Audit Committee and answered

by the executive directors; and

(vii) reviewed the connected transaction in respect of the extension of lease of
premises situated at Ground Floor and Cockloft, No. 84 San Hong Street
North New Territories, Hong Kong.

The Audit Committee also reviewed the reports on the latest progress of internal

audit assignments and enterprise risk management project.

The Audit Committee also met the external auditor once without the presence of the
executive directors and the management.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31st March, 2021 have been

reviewed by the Audit Committee.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee regarding
the appointment and re-election of the external auditor.

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the code provision
D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Board has reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies and
practices, training and continuous professional development of directors and senior
management, the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Model Code and Employees
Written Guidelines, and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and

disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.
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=t—BHItSEERTrEEeR®EEZE  meetings and the general meeting of the Company held during the year ended 31st
eesUEMRERE 2 HEDEINT March, 2021 are set out in the table below:

=
HERE SERE
Attendance/Number of Meetings
REBFAE
FHEEE REZEE EREEE Annual
#ZE2 Remuneration Nomination Audit General
EENR Name of Directors Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
HITEFE Executive Directors
B E L Mr. CHENG Chung Man, Johnny 9/9 3/3 212 i@ A 1/1
N/A
MERZ T Ms. LAM Yuk Sum 9/9 3/3 22 TR 1/1
N/A
FHTEE Non-executive Director
RSB SE & Mr. LAM Man Tin 5/9 TiEA TER TER /1
N/A N/A N/A
BUIFHTEE Independent Non-executive Directors
BfZEE%TE Mr. AU-YEUNG Hau Cheong 6/9 313 212 5/5 1/1
B EELE Mr. CHENG Man Loong, Monty 6/9 3/3 212 5/5 1/1
K ERE Mr. YEUNG Wing Kay 6/9 3/3 2/2 5/5 1/1

REMEESSHN ERTREALH Besides the above-mentioned Board meetings, the Chairman also held a meeting
TEENENTETEE 2B R TEBL with the independent non-executive directors without the presence of executive
ERITERETT —REE ° director and non-executive director during the year.
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The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the consolidated
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2021 and
ensure that the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group and are prepared in accordance with statutory

requirements and applicable accounting standards.

As disclosed in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements in this Annual
Report, in preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of
the Company have given careful consideration to the future liquidity of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) in light of the Group’s net loss
of HK$184,882,000 during the year ended 31st March, 2021 and net current
liabilities position of HK$256,022,000 as at 31st March, 2021, the outstanding
bank borrowings and lease liabilities due for repayment against the expected
future net cash inflows from operations, cash and cash equivalents and the existing
banking facilities of the Group. The directors of the Company consider that, after
taking into account the cash and cash equivalents, existing banking facilities and
cash flows to be generated from operations, that the Group will have sufficient
funds to meet its financial obligations for at least the next twelve months from the
date of approval of these consolidated financial statements. Accordingly, these
consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

The Company’s external auditor, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, has issued
an unmodified opinion with a “Material Uncertainty related to Going Concern”
section in the “Independent Auditor’s Report”. Please refer to the “Independent
Auditor’s Report” on page 45 of this annual report for details.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements is set out in the Section
headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 45 to 52 of this annual report.
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An analysis of the remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s external auditors,
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, in respect of audit services and non-audit
services for the year ended 31st March, 2021 is set out below:

e ENER

Category of Services Fee Paid/Payable

FHET

HK$’000

Audit Service 2,425
Non-audit Services

— Tax service 133

— Other professional services 215

TOTAL 2,773

Enterprise risk management is fundamental and essential to the achievement of
the Group’s strategic objectives. The Board of Directors and the management are
responsible for identifying and analyzing the risks underlying the achievement of
business objectives, and for determining how such risks should be managed and
mitigated. The Board oversees the Group’s potential risks and their respective
mitigation strategies and ensures risk management effectiveness. The Board
ensures that the Group has established and maintained a proper and effective risk
management and internal control systems, as well as reviewing the effectiveness of
the systems. The systems can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss, as they are designed to manage, rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives during the Group’s

business operation.
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The Board, through the Audit Committee, assesses on an annual basis the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems of the Group,
which covers all material controls, including financial, operational, compliance, as
well as considers the sufficiency of budget with respect to resources, employees’
capabilities and experience, training courses and the Group’s accounting and
financial reporting function. Significant issues from internal audit department,
external professional consultants and management letters from external auditor are
brought to the attention of the Audit Committee to ensure that prompt remedial
action is taken. All recommendations will be properly followed up to ensure they
are implemented within a reasonable period of time.

The Company has an Internal Audit Department to handle the internal audit
function. The Internal Audit Department is responsible for performing independent
review of the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems. The Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the internal audit
function and the review result is satisfactory.

The management of daily operations of the Company’s business departments is
based on the Company’s corporate risk management framework. The corporate
risk management framework addresses four risk categories, including strategic,

financial, operation and compliance risks.

There is Risk Management Taskforce (“RMT”) which seek to monitor the risks of
the Group. The RMT was made up of members of senior management, who reports
to the Board of Directors on matters of significance that arise. The RMT reports
via the Audit Committee to the Board. The RMT oversees the risk owners, who
are responsible for inventory management, information technology, marketing and
operation, etc. The risk owners reported to the RMT their involved risks and the
planned measures to mitigate those risks.

. During the current year, the RMT held two meetings.
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. The meetings involved the discussion of the existing risks and measures to
mitigate those risks and the RMT have re-assessed the top 10 priority risks
of the Group for the year ended 31st March, 2021.

The management has confirmed to the Board and the Audit Committee on the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems for the year
ended 31st March, 2021. The Board, as supported by the Audit Committee as
well as the management report and the internal audit findings, reviewed the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group, including the financial,
operational and compliance controls, for the year ended 31st March, 2021, and
considered that such systems are effective and adequate. The annual review also
covered the financial reporting and staff qualifications, experience and relevant
resources.

Arrangements are in place to facilitate employees of the Company to raise, in
confidence, concerns about the possible improprieties in financial reporting,
internal control or other matters of the Group.

For the handling and dissemination of inside information, a Disclosure Policy has
been adopted by the Board since August 2013 with an aim to provide a general
guide to the directors, officers, senior management and relevant employees of
the Company in handling of confidential information and/ or monitoring of

information disclosure pursuant to applicable laws and regulations.

The control procedures were stated and identified in the Disclosure Policy. The
Company has procedures in place to keep information confidential and manage
actual or potential conflicts of interest. The Company has an Internal Audit
Department to handle the internal audit functions, which reports directly to the
Audit Committee and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, and also reports
the matters concerning internal control of the Company for the year ended 31st
March, 2021 to the Audit Committee during its regular meetings.
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Ms. Wong Chi Ying, the financial controller of the Group, has been the Company
Secretary of the Company since 1999. Ms. Wong complied with the qualification
and training requirements under the Listing Rules for the year ended 31st March,
2021.

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate resolution is proposed
for each substantially separate issue in general meetings, including the election of
individual directors, for shareholders’ consideration and voting. All resolutions
put forward in general meetings are taken by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules
and the poll results are posted on the websites of the Company and of Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited after each general meeting. Detailed procedures
for conducting a poll are also explained during the proceedings of meetings.

Extraordinary general meetings may be convened on the requisition of one or
more shareholders holding not less than one tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company having the right of voting at general meetings pursuant to article 64 of
the Company’s Articles. Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Company
Secretary, stating the business to be transacted, and signed by the requisitionist(s).
Shareholders should follow the requirements and procedures as set out in the
Company’s Articles.

There are no provisions in the Company’s Articles or the Cayman Islands
Companies Law for shareholders to move new resolutions at general meetings.
Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request the Company to convene
a general meeting in accordance with the procedures set out in the preceding
paragraph.

As regards proposing a person for election as a director of the Company, please
refer to the “Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for Election as a

Director” which is posted on the Company’s website.
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For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company, shareholders may
send written enquiries to the Company.

Note: The Company normally will not deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned above to the
following:
Address: 10/F., Wyler Centre Phase II, 192-200 Tai Lin Pai Road, Kwai Chung,
New Territories, Hong Kong

(For the attention of the Company Secretary)

Fax: (852) 2310 9017

Email: contact@veeko.com.hk

Shareholders are encouraged to provide, amongst other things, in particular,
their email addresses to the Company in order to facilitate timely and effective

communication.

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send the original duly
signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as the case may be) to
the above address and provide their full name, contact details and identification
in order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as

required by law.

The Company endeavors to maintain a high level of transparency in
communicating with shareholders and the investment community at large.
The Company is committed to continue to maintain an open and effective
communication policy and to update shareholders, investors and general
public on relevant information on its business in a timely manner, subject to
relevant regulatory requirements, through the annual reports, interim reports,
announcements and other corporate communications.
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The Board welcomes shareholders’ views on matters affecting the Group, and
encourages their attendance at general meetings to communicate any concerns they
may have with the Board or management directly. The Company’s annual general
meeting is an especially important forum. In order to encourage and facilitate
shareholders’ attendance at its annual general meeting, the Company gives at least
20 clear business days’ prior notice together with a detailed agenda. The Chairman
of the Board and the chairman of each Board committees (or their delegates) are
available to answer questions at general meetings.

As a channel to promote effective communication, the Company maintains
a website at www.irasia.com/listco/hk/veeko/index.htm, where up-to-date
information and updates on the Company’s structure, board of directors,
announcements, financial information and other information are posted.

During the year under review, there was no change in the Company’s Articles. An
up-to-date version of the Company’s Articles is also available on the websites of
the Company and Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited.

The Company has in place a Shareholders’ Communication Policy to ensure
that shareholders’ views and concerns are appropriately addressed. The policy is

regularly reviewed to ensure its effectiveness.

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy on payment of dividends. The
Company do not have any pre-determined dividend payout ratio. Depending on the
financial conditions of the Company and the Group and the conditions and factors
as set out in the Dividend Policy, dividends may be proposed and/or declared by
the Board during a financial year and any final dividend for a financial year will be

subject to the shareholders’ approval.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF VEEKO INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS
LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Veeko International
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) set out on pages 53 to 159, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31st March, 2021, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31st March, 2021, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
(“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained

is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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We draw attention to note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, which
indicates that the Group incurred a net loss of HK$184,882,000 during the year
ended 31st March, 2021 and, as of that date, the Group’s current liabilities
exceeded its current assets by HK$256,022,000. As set out in note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Company consider that
the Group will have sufficient funds to meet its financial obligations for at least
the next twelve months from the date of approval of these consolidated financial
statements, based on management’s judgements and estimations of key inputs
and market conditions, including revenue and expenditure growth of the business,
working capital needs and, the continuing renewal of the banking facilities. These
conditions, along with other matters as set forth in note 2 to the consolidated
financial statements, indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. Our
opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the
matter described in the Material Uncertainty related to Going Concern section,
we have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be

communicated in our report.
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We identified the impairment assessment of the property, plant
and equipment other than leasehold land and buildings and motor
vehicles (the “Identified PPE”) and right-of-use assets other than
leasehold land outside Hong Kong (the “Identified ROU assets™)
as a key audit matter due to inherent estimation uncertainty
pertaining to the assumptions and estimations required to assess the
recoverable amounts of these assets or the cash-generating unit or
the smallest group of cash generating units to which these assets
belong.
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As disclosed in notes 5, 16 and 17 to the consolidated financial
statements, the carrying amounts of the Identified PPE and the
Identified ROU assets as at 31st March, 2021 are HK$8,218,000
and HK$54,134,000 respectively. For the purpose of assessing
impairment of these assets, the recoverable amounts of these
assets have been determined by the management of the Group by
value in use calculations of individual retail stores to which these
assets belong using the discounted cash flow forecasts based on
management’s expectations of the market development and the past
performance, where the key input parameters include forecasted

revenue, gross profit margins and discount rates.

BEEEEBNIE RBEZZ=_—F=A=+—HILFE
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Based on management’s assessment, further impairment losses on
the Identified PPE and the Identified ROU assets of HK$3,873,000
and HK$53,619,000, respectively, have been recognised in profit or
loss during the year ended 31st March, 2021.

RIREBRIIZEE  BERRBUARE RN 2 EAEEE ZRE
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Our procedures in relation to the impairment assessment of the
Identified PPE and the Identified ROU assets included:

. THREEENE R CESR - BFELRRELRE BH 2 E
A E 2 BERERB R REE

. Obtaining an understanding of the management’s process and
basis adopted in the impairment assessment of the Identified
PPE and the Identified ROU assets;

. EATABGEZERNZET - 2FERmETARAME
RTERFERRBREE  FAEAEEFEMABATRX
IR

. Evaluating the reasonableness of the pre-tax discount rates

used in the value in use calculations with reference to the
current market risk-free rate of interest and the industry
specific risk factor with the involvement of our internal
valuation specialists;

. AHEHEERAEEAE(REEREHRASEZBRENEN
EBFRELEREATEERBERR  EREHHHE
ROEHE BERENARKREEAI)ETEEEMELD
BRRREFTNEENE &

. Evaluating the reasonableness of management’s assumptions
and estimates used in the value in use calculation including
management’s estimates of forecasted revenue and gross profit
margins with reference to the past performance of the relevant
retail stores, management’s expectations on the market

development and the future operating plans of the Group; and

. REASEEREMEAEAEEE  EMNERFRERY
SEAREEL  FIEHERBEEAENEEYE -

. Evaluating the potential impact on the value in use calculations
based on the reasonably possible changes of the forecasted
revenue, gross profit margins and discount rates applied by the
management of the Group.
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Key audit matter
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Valuation of investment properties
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We identified the valuation of investment properties as a key audit
matter due to the significance of the balance to the consolidated
statement of financial position as a whole, combined with the
inherent estimation uncertainty pertaining to the assumptions
and estimations required when determining the fair value of the
investment properties.
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As disclosed in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements,
the fair value of the Group’s investment properties amounted to
HK$338,349,000 as at 31st March, 2021 with a net decrease in fair
value of HK$28,929,000 recognised in the profit or loss for the year
then ended.
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As disclosed in notes 5 and 15 to the consolidated financial
statements, the fair value of the Group’s investment properties as
at 31st March, 2021 is determined based on valuations carried out
on that date by independent qualified professional valuers (the
“Valuers”). The valuations are dependent on the valuation method
and key inputs to the model that includes judgements made by
the management. In determining the fair value of the commercial
properties located in Hong Kong and industrial properties
located in the PRC, the Valuers consider the key inputs including
capitalisation rates and monthly market rent per square foot/meter
under income capitalisation approach. In determining the fair value
of parking spaces and an industrial property based in Hong Kong,
the Valuers consider the key inputs including market observable
price of similar properties of the parking spaces and an industrial
property located in Hong Kong under direct comparison approach.

RIZEFTITHENALEEBRREASE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

AT BV RAERB 2 IEF 8

Our procedures in relation to valuation of investment properties

included:

TREEZER  PEGEMREEEMBZGERER
AREERA 2 =28 AR0E

Obtaining an understanding of the valuation process including
the valuation method used and the key inputs used in the
valuation model by the Valuers and management;

FHEEEMZEE - e h REEIE
Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the
Valuers;

FHEMRAZGETEZR
BABBZEERRE
Evaluating the appropriateness of the valuation methods used
and the reasonableness of the key inputs used to determine the
fair value;

BEUEMAAEERATFEENEE
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HHEEMERABME

Assessing the appropriateness and reasonableness of the
capitalisation rates and monthly market rent per square
foot/meter used by the independent professional valuers,
by comparing to comparable information obtained from
independent and publicly available sources; and

FREEE T NRRRESH A L ERETHER - A
T EEGEMARAAUYENTS LA BRERNEE
MREIEM

Assessing the appropriateness and reasonableness of market
observable prices of similar properties used by the independent
professional valuer, by comparing them to comparable
information obtained from independent and publicly available
sources.
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The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other

information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
of the Company determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud

Or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Company
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do
SO.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions

of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal

control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s

internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.
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. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors of the Company’s use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a

going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to express
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our

audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to

eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements (Continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor’s report
is Woo King Wa.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 11th July, 2021
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Revenue
Cost of goods sold

Gross profit
Selling and distribution costs
Administrative expenses
Other income, gains and losses

Impairment loss under expected credit

loss model

Decrease in fair value of investment

properties

Impairment of property, plant and

equipment

Impairment of right-of-use assets
Finance costs

Loss before tax
Income tax expense

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income

(expense) for the year

Item that will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss
Gain on revaluation of properties,

net of deferred tax

Item that may be reclassified

subsequently to profit or loss

Exchange differences arising on
translation of foreign operations

Other comprehensive income

(expense) for the year

Total comprehensive expense for

the year

Loss per share

— basic

— diluted

Hiat
Notes

10

14

2021 2020
FHET T
HK$°000 HK$’000
517,246 1,042,397
(321,356) (645,047)
195,890 397,350
(254,390) (463,688)
(77,278) (103,189)
59,784 15,643
(1,466) (3,995)
(28,929) (11,707)
(3,873) (6,790)
(53,619) (53,717)
(15,438) (25,585)
(179,319) (255,678)
(5,563) (2,770)
(184,882) (258,448)
17,622 3,245
9,253 (4,123)
26,875 (878)
(158,007) (259,326)
A ol
HK cents HK cents
(7.342) (10.264)
(7.342) (10.264)




VEEKO INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

—T-—%=A=+—H At 31st March, 2021
2021 2020
HitaE FET FET
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
EMEEE Non-current Assets
A Investment properties 15 338,349 306,113
EX  BERE Property, plant and equipment 16 95,889 144,432
FREEE Right-of-use assets 17 58,046 180,278
BENHEEES Rental deposits paid 16,991 29,504
RIEFRIBA E Deferred tax assets 19 - 4,745
509,275 665,072
mBEE Current Assets
7E Inventories 20 195,156 356,014
FEURE 5 2k 18 & H fib fE U 58 Trade and other receivables 21 16,976 25,527
S RKEZS Rental and utility deposits paid 43,381 46,635
A4 E 2 Fi IR Tax recoverable 123 9,806
RITER  BREES Bank balances, deposits and cash 22 47,114 26,476
302,750 464,458
mENAE Current Liabilities
FERHE 5 2h08 & E fb fE < 3508 Trade and other payables 23 52,736 61,415
Bl eRE Rental deposits received 124 700
HIEARITEE Secured bank borrowings 24 389,494 420,059
HEBE Lease liabilities 25 114,939 158,974
A Provision 18 1,209 4,481
B FIE Tax payable 270 893
558,772 646,522
mEBaEFE Net Current Liabilities (256,022) (182,064)
253,253 483,008
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

At 31st March, 2021

2021 2020
HitaE FER FAT
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
B R fE Capital and Reserves

% A< Share capital 26 25,180 25,180
EE Reserves 171,236 329,184
196,416 354,364

FERBAE Non-current Liabilities
H b e~ FOR Other payables 23 2,542 =
Bk Ee Rental deposits received 1,194 577
BEIETRIEEE Deferred tax liabilities 19 12,724 11,608
HEARE Lease liabilities 25 40,377 116,459
56,837 128,644
253,253 483,008
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The consolidated financial statements on pages 53 to 159 were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 11th July, 2021 and are signed on
its behalf by:

Cheng Chung Man, Johnny
Chairman

Lam Yuk Sum
Director
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VEEKO INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

GAERRHE N\
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BEe—_Z - —F=-—A=1+—HLFE For the year ended 31st March, 2021
REEA
NEER BRE (ZRER)
it g%  Retained
B RMEE  Property  EREE  BHBE  EERR Share profits
Share Share  revaluation Translation Special  Statutory option  (accumulated can
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserves reserve loss) Total

TAL T TAT T TAL T TAL T TAL
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000

RZZ-NFMA-A At Ist April, 2019 25,180 223,654 14726 (1,099) 2,266 U 1,254 350,152 616,157
TR Loss for the year - - - - - - - (258448 (258448
FEEEMAE Other comprehensive income

BA(R) (expense) for the year - - 345 (4123) - - - - (878)
TEEE2E Total comprehensive income

BA(RR) (expense) for the year - - 345 (4123) - - - (848 (299326)
B EE AR (A Recognition of equity-settled share-

BARZER based payments - - - - - - 51 _ 51
BiH ke Share options lapsed - - - - = - (152) 15 =
EAANEZRE(H:E13)  Dividends recognised as distribution

(Note 13)

g -cush > - - - - - sy sy
o Subtoa . . . : - VX IR
R-E-ZE=A=+-F  At3lstMarch, 2020 25,180 223,654 17971 (5,222) 2,266 4 1,153 89,338 354,364
TEERE Loss for the year - - - - - - - (184882)  (184,882)
FEEEMIERA Other comprehensive income

for the year - - 17,622 9,253 - - - - 26,875
TEE42E Total comprehensive income

BARR) (expense) for the year - - 17,622 9,53 - - - (18488)  (158,007)
BEARALEE 2 R Recognition of equity-settled

BARZER share-based payments - - - - - - 5 - 5
BRMzERE Share options lapsed - - - - - - (829) 829 -
SH-BHEAABENZ  Release of special reserve upon

KRG R deregistration of a subsidiary - - - - (598) - - 598 -
et Sub-total - - - - (398) - m) 14 5
RZE--F=A=+-H  At3lstMarch, 2021 25,180 123,654 35,593 4,031 1,668 2 383 (94,117) 196,416
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

 E—T - —F=A=1T—HItFE For the year ended 31st March, 2021
SENERIFEETETIIME 280 The special reserve of the Group represents the aggregate of:

(a) HR—ANNFEEEA - Veeko (a) the difference between the nominal value of share capital of Veeko

Holdings Limited &) i% 7~ [ {8 22 28 Holdings Limited and the nominal value of the share capital issued by
RABTIERBERENRAR the Company as consideration for the acquisition, arisen from the group
BEHZERE: & reorganisation in 1999; and

(b) Veeko Holdings Limited 7 & (b) the difference between the aggregate nominal value of the share capital of

SHAMBANE A AR ZF the subsidiaries when they were acquired by Veeko Holdings Limited prior
B 8 2 A] BR 7N #) 42 T B 22 Veeko to the group reorganisation and the nominal value of the share capital issued
Holdings Limited 317 £ /& U fE X by Veeko Holdings Limited as consideration for the acquisition.
EBORAEENEZRE -
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OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax
Adjustments for:
Scrap, shrinkage and provision for
slow moving inventories
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Finance costs
Decrease in fair value of investment properties
Interest income
(Gain) loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Gain on termination of leases
Reversal of onerous contracts provision
Impairment loss recognised in respect of
property, plant and equipment
Impairment loss recognised in respect of
right-of-use assets
Impairment loss recognised on trade receivables,
under expected credit loss model

Share-based payment expenses

Operating cash flows before movements in
working capital

Decrease in inventories

Decrease in trade and other receivables

Decrease in rental and utility deposits paid
Decrease in trade and other payables

Decrease in rental deposits received

Net cash generated from operations
Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded (paid)
Tax paid in other jurisdictions

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Payments of rental deposits
Refund of rental deposits
Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Interest received
Payment for acquisition of an investment property

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

2021 2020
FHER FHTT
HK$°000 HK$’000
(179,319) (255,678)
14,839 10,371
13,138 23,542
100,941 189,598
15,438 25,585
28,929 11,707
(1,467) (1,976)
(85) 901
(2,795) =
(3,272) (4,630)
3,873 6,790
53,619 53,717
1,466 3,995
59 51
45,364 63,973
146,019 66,407
7,848 5,857
15,529 18,008
(9,207) (19,975)
(25) (270)
205,528 134,000
8,845 (1,745)
(670) (2,685)
213,703 129,570
(5,118) (9,385)
(552) (3,871)
2,530 1,038
85 30

31 59
- (106,719)
(3,024) (118,848)
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FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of import loans
Repayment of lease liabilities
Repayment of bank loans
Interest paid on bank borrowings
New import loans raised

New bank loans raised
Dividends paid

NET CASH USED IN
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE
RATE CHANGES

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF
THE YEAR,
Represented by bank balances,
deposits and cash

2021 2020
FERT FAT
HKS$’000 HK$°000
(153,690) (315,799)
(152,657) (179,356)
(100,403) (272,005)
(9,947) (13,968)
119,568 328,523
103,960 413,750
- (2,518)
(193,169) (41,373)
17,510 (30,651)
26,476 56,064
3,128 1,063
47,114 26,476
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Veeko International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated as an
exempted company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands and its shares are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The
directors of the Company consider the direct holding company is Silver Crown
Profits Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, which is
ultimately owned by HSBC International Trustee Limited for The J Cheng Family
Trust. The addresses of the registered office and the principal place of business of
the Company are disclosed in “Corporate Information” of the annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities of its
principal subsidiaries are set out in note 33.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
(“HKS$”), which is also the functional currency of the Company.

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Company
have given careful consideration to the future liquidity of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) in light of the Group’s net loss of HK$184,882,000
during the year ended 31st March, 2021 and net current liabilities position of
HK$256,022,000 as at 31st March, 2021, the outstanding bank borrowings and
lease liabilities due for repayment against the expected future net cash inflows
from operations, cash and cash equivalents and the existing banking facilities of the
Group.

The Group has prepared a cash flow projection based on management’s judgments
and estimations of key inputs and market conditions, including revenue and
expenditure growth of the business, working capital needs and, the continuing
renewal of the banking facilities as disclosed in note 24. The management’s
assessment included consideration of potential downside risk factors, working
capital sensitivities and have identified mitigating actions that could be taken to
further reduce cash expenditure or increase banking facilities if necessary.

The directors of the Company consider that, after taking into account the cash
and cash equivalents, existing banking facilities and cash flows to be generated
from operations, that the Group will have sufficient funds to meet its financial
obligations for at least the next twelve months from the date of approval of these
consolidated financial statements. Accordingly, these consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.
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In the current year, the Group has applied the “Amendments to References to the
Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards” and the following amendments
to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) for the first time, which are mandatory effective for the annual period
beginning on or after Ist April, 2020 for the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements:

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of Material

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
HKFRS 7

Except as described below, the application of the “Amendments to References to
the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards” and the new and amendments to
HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
positions and performance for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures

set out in these consolidated financial statements.

The Group has applied the Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 for the first time
in the current year. The amendments provide a new definition of material that states
“information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be
expected to influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial
statements make on the basis of those financial statements, which provide financial
information about a specific reporting entity”. The amendments also clarify that
materiality depends on the nature or magnitude of information, either individually
or in combination with other information, in the context of the financial statements

taken as a whole.

The application of the amendments in the current year had no impact to these
consolidated financial statements.
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The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments to HKFRSs
that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKERS 17
Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39,
HKEFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

Amendment to HKFRS 16

Amendment to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS

Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8
Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKFRSs

Insurance Contracts and the related Amendments'
Reference to the Conceptual Framework?

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2°

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture?

COVID-19 - Related Rent Concessions*

COVID-19 - Related Rent Concessions beyond 30th
June, 2021°

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
and related amendments to Hong Kong Interpretation 5
(2020)!

Disclosure of Accounting Policies'

Definition of Accounting Estimates'

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising
from a Single Transaction'

Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds before

Intended Use?

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract®

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020*

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2023.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2022.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st June, 2020.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2021.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st April, 2021.
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Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs mentioned below, the directors
of the Company anticipate that the application of all other new and amendments to
HKFRSs will have no material impact on these consolidated financial statements in
the foreseeable future.

Amendment to HKFRS 16 “COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions”

The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1st
June, 2020.

The amendment introduces a new practical expedient for lessees to elect not
to assess whether a COVID-19-related rent concession is a lease modification.
The practical expedient only applies to rent concessions occurring as a direct
consequence of the COVID-19 that meets all of the following conditions:

. the change in lease payments results in revised consideration for the lease
that is substantially the same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change;

. any reduction in lease payments affects only payments originally due on or
before 30th June, 2021; and

. there is no substantive change to other terms and conditions of the lease.

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts for changes in lease payments
resulting from rent concessions the same way it would account for the changes
applying HKFRS 16 “Leases” if the changes were not a lease modification.
Forgiveness or waiver of lease payments are accounted for as variable lease
payments. The related lease liabilities are adjusted to reflect the amounts forgiven
or waived with a corresponding adjustment recognised in the profit or loss in the

period in which the event occurs.
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Amendment to HKFRS 16 “COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions” (Continued)

The application is not expected to have impact on the Group’s financial position
and performance as the Group does not intend to apply the practical expedient.

Amendment to HKFRS 16 “COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30th June
2021”

The amendment extends the availability of the practical expedient in paragraph
46A of HKFRS 16 by one year so that the practical expedient applies to rent
concessions for which any reduction in lease payments affects only payments
originally due on or before 30th June, 2022, provided the other conditions for
applying the practical expedient are met.

The application is not expected to have impact on the Group’s financial position
and performance as the Group does not intend to apply the practical expedient.

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16 “Interest
Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2”

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16
“Interest rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 27 relate to the modification of
financial assets, financial liabilities and lease liabilities, specific hedge accounting
requirements and disclosure requirements applying HKFRS 7 “Financial
Instruments: Disclosures” to accompany the amendments regarding modifications
and hedge accounting.

. Modification of financial assets, financial liabilities and lease liabilities.
A practical expedient is introduced for modifications required by the
reform (modifications required as a direct consequence of the interest rate
benchmark reform and made on an economically equivalent basis). These
modifications are accounted for by updating the effective interest rate. All
other modifications are accounted for using the current IFRSs requirements.
A similar practical expedient is proposed for lessee accounting applying
HKFRS 16;
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Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16 “Interest
Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2" (Continued)

. Hedge accounting requirements. Under the amendments, hedge
accounting is not discontinued solely because of the interest rate benchmark
reform. Hedging relationships (and related documentation) are required to
be amended to reflect modifications to the hedged item, hedging instrument
and hedge risk. Amended hedging relationships should meet all qualifying
criteria to apply hedge accounting, including effectiveness requirements;

and

. Disclosures. The amendments require disclosures in order to allow users
to understand the nature and extent of risks arising from the interest rate
benchmark reform to which the Group is exposed to and how the entity
manages those risks as well as the entity’s progress in transitioning from
interbank offered rates to alternative benchmark rates, and how the entity is

managing this transition.

As at 31st March, 2021, the Group has several Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate
(“HIBOR”) and London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) bank loans, which will
be subject to interest rate benchmark reform. The Group expects no significant
gains or losses should the interest rate benchmark for these loans change resulting
from the reform on application of the amendments.

Amendments to HKAS I and HKFRS Practice Statement 2 “Disclosure of
Accounting Policies”

HKAS 1 is amended to replace all instances of the term “significant accounting
policies” with “material accounting policy information”. Accounting policy
information is material if, when considered together with other information
included in an entity’s financial statements, it can reasonably be expected to
influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial statements
make on the basis of those financial statements.



B AT ERE 1S EET AR BB S
EEREGIEE = [ Ea R R E ()
ZEATMEA  BEEHERBALTE
R ERRERRS - EMEEIGRTA
MH WEFHREERRBEK - AT
WIFMEREARS - REARINRAE
S BRENATEERX < f—HE
RBESRBEIENSHEE  WEHER
PMSBEERNGHABERER -

EEMBHREEEPBRA _(FHER2 M
HEr ([ P12 ) IRERIERT - UEiHERE
Wfari [ AERFAERERE AR E
AR EA R A HS A &S RN E
HEEFBHRERMEEEEEKN - B2
BAE I INtE 5 R E DI S EREIRHIHE) -

EHES LIRS -Fa RN Sl O
%iﬁiﬁﬁkij@é; Bl gE R BALE T
EETHENKRE - EFANTEME)E
MAKE B R HERE BRI IKE -

BB EERIESHIEETE [ EBFHEERE
#/
ZIEFER T HER [ FETETHMA
EAENMBHRERZEESE] - STBR
AR ER MR THIBEE LS RETED
BEMM TN ETTE—A ST BR T8
ERBHEER DVF%E?%&;EWQJE’]T’%%
REITEIE - BMEETEHE - RILED
T BEREHESTHE Mgﬁgﬁﬁ
RETIWERZR - FIENETHE L REA
ER A5 0] SER) B RHA H B sk A% o

B - BRI R ESSA G EH
EOHEATIMRE AL —SBE -

ERETAEMIEUAREGRAMBER
REREATE -

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2 “Disclosure of
Accounting Policies” (Continued)

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy information may be material
because of the nature of the related transactions, other events or conditions, even
if the amounts are immaterial. However, not all accounting policy information
relating to material transactions, other events or conditions is itself material. If
an entity chooses to disclose immaterial accounting policy information, such
information must not obscure material accounting policy information.

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements (the “Practice
Statement”) is also amended to illustrate how an entity applies the “four-step
materiality process” to accounting policy disclosures and to judge whether
information about an accounting policy is material to its financial statements.

Guidance and examples are added to the Practice Statement to help entities.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have significant impact on
the financial position or performance of the Group but may affect the disclosures of
the Group’s significant accounting policies. The impacts of application, if any, will
be disclosed in the Group’s future consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 8 “Definition of Accounting Estimates”

The amendments define accounting estimates as “monetary amounts in financial
statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty”’. An accounting policy
may require items in financial statements to be measured in a way that involves
measurement uncertainty — that is, the accounting policy may require such items
to be measured at monetary amounts that cannot be observed directly and must
instead be estimated. In such a case, an entity develops an accounting estimate
to achieve the objective set out by the accounting policy. Developing accounting
estimates involves the use of judgements or assumptions based on the latest
available, reliable information.

In addition, the concept of changes in accounting estimates in HKAS 8 is retained
with additional clarifications.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have significant impact on
the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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Amendments to HKAS 12 “Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising

from a Single Transaction”

The amendments narrow the scope of the recognition exemption of deferred tax
liabilities and deferred tax assets in paragraphs 15 and 24 of HKAS 12 so that it no
longer applies to transactions that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable

and deductible temporary differences.

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements, for leasing
transactions in which the tax deductions are attributable to the lease liabilities
and for transactions in which provisions for decommissioning and restoration are
recognised with the corresponding amounts recognised as part of the cost of the
related assets, the Group applies HKAS 12 requirements to the relevant assets
and liabilities as a whole. Temporary differences relating to relevant assets and
liabilities are assessed on a net basis.

Upon the application of the amendments, the Group will recognise a deferred tax
asset (to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary difference can be utilised) and a deferred tax
liability for all deductible and taxable temporary differences associated with the
right-of-use assets and the lease liabilities.

In addition, the Group will recognise a deferred tax asset (to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary difference can be utilised) and a deferred tax liability for all
deductible and taxable temporary differences associated with the provisions for
decommissioning and restoration and the corresponding amounts recognised as

part of the cost of the related assets.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after
Ist April 2023, with early application permitted. As at 31st March, 2021, the
carrying amounts of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities which are subject to
the amendments amounted to HK$16,371,000 and HK$19,624,000, respectively,
and the carrying amounts of provisions for decommissioning and restoration and
the corresponding amounts recognised as part of the cost of the related assets
which are subject to the amendments amounted to HK$810,000 and HK$306,000
respectively. The Group is still in the process of assessing the full impact of the

application of the amendments.
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The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. For the purpose of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements, information is considered material if such information is
reasonably expected to influence decisions made by primary users. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock
Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost
basis except for investment properties that are measured at fair value at the end of
each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in
exchange for goods.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset
or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2
“Share-based Payment”, leasing transactions that are accounted for in accordance
with HKFRS 16, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are
not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use
in HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market
participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest
and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset

in its highest and best use.

For investment properties which are transacted at fair value and a valuation
technique that unobservable inputs is to be used to measure fair value in subsequent
periods, the valuation technique is calibrated so that at initial recognition the
results of the valuation technique equals the transaction price.
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In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are
categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair
value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical

assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1,
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the
Company and entities controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

. has power over the investee;
. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee; and

. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements
of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the
subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases
to control the subsidiary.
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When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to
bring their accounting policies in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on

consolidation.

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied,
i.e. when “control” of the goods underlying the particular performance obligation
is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good (or a bundle of goods) that is distinct

or a series of distinct goods that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over time by reference to
the progress towards complete satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation
if one of the following criteria is met:

. the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided
by the Group’s performance as the Group performs;

. the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

. the Group’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative
use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains
control of the distinct goods.
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Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation.

Investment properties also include leased properties which are being recognised as
right-of-use assets and subleased by the Group under operating leases.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any directly
attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are measured at their fair value, adjusted to exclude any prepaid or accrued
operating lease income.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment properties are

included in profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment
property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits
are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
property (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in which the

property is derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold land and buildings held for use
in the production or supply of goods and services, or for administrative purposes
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost or deemed cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if

any.

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of property which
includes both leasehold land and building elements, the entire consideration is
allocated between the leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values at initial recognition. To the extent the allocation of the relevant
payments can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land is presented as “right-
of-use assets” in the consolidated statement of financial position except for those
that are classified and accounted for as investment properties under the fair value
model. When the consideration cannot be allocated reliably between non-lease
building element and undivided interest in the underlying leasehold land, the entire
properties are classified as property, plant and equipment.
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If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment property
because its use has changed as evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any
difference between the carrying amount and the fair value of that item at the date of
transfer is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in “property
revaluation reserve”. On the subsequent sale or retirement of the asset, the relevant
property revaluation reserve will be transferred directly to retained profits.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted
for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant
and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets to determine whether there
is any indication that these assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
are estimated individually. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount individually, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate assets are allocated
to the relevant cash-generating unit when a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be established, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group
of cash generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be established. The recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit or group of cash-generating units to which the corporate asset belongs, and is
compared with the carrying amount of the relevant cash-generating unit or group of
cash-generating units.
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Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset (or a
cash-generating unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been

adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets or portion of
corporate assets which cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis
to a cash-generating unit, the Group compares the carrying amount of a group of
cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts of the corporate assets or
portion of corporate assets allocated to that group of cash-generating units, with
the recoverable amount of the group of cash-generating units. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated on a pro-rata basis based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the group of cash-generating units.
The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and zero.
The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the
asset is allocated pro rata to the assets of the unit or the group of cash-generating
units. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the
asset (or cash-generating unit or a group of cash-generating units) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit or a
group of cash-generating units) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use

of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date of initial application, or
arising from business combinations, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification
date or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless
the terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or more additional lease
or non-lease components, the Group allocates the consideration in the contract to
each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease
component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components
including contract for acquisition of ownership interests of a property which
includes both leasehold land and non-lease building components, unless such
allocation cannot be made reliably.

Non-lease components are separated from lease component and are accounted for

by applying other applicable standards.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to leases of retail
stores and office properties that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option. Lease payments on
short-term leases are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis or another

systematic basis over the lease term.
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The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

. the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

. any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less any

lease incentives received;

. any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

. an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in dismantling and
removing the underlying assets, restoring the site on which it is located or
restoring the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and

conditions of the lease.

Except for those that are classified as investment properties and measured under
fair value model, right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to obtain ownership
of the underlying leased assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated from
commencement date to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and
the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment
property as a separate line item on the consolidated statement of financial position.
Right-of-use assets that meet the definition of investment property are presented
with “investment properties”.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS 9 and initially
measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and included in the cost of right-of-use
assets.
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The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises and measures the
lease liability at the present value of lease payments that are unpaid at that date.
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

. fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease

incentives receivable;

. variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially

measured using the index or rate as at the commencement date;

. amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual value
guarantees;
. the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is reasonably certain to

exercise the option; and

. payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease term reflects the
Group exercising an option to terminate the lease.

Variable lease payments that reflect changes in market rental rates are initially
measured using the market rental rates as at the commencement date. Variable
lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are not included in the
measurement of lease liabilities and right-of-use assets, and are recognised as
expense in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment

occurs.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by interest accretion

and lease payments.
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The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a corresponding adjustment to
the related right-of-use assets) whenever:

. the lease term has changed or there is a change in the assessment of exercise
of a purchase option, in which case the related lease liability is remeasured
by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at

the date of reassessment.

. the lease payments change due to changes in market rental rates following a
market rent review, in which cases the related lease liability is remeasured
by discounting the revised lease payments using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease if:

. the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding the right to use

one or more underlying assets; and

. the consideration for the leases increases by an amount commensurate
with the stand-alone price for the increase in scope and any appropriate
adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of the
particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate lease, the Group
remeasures the lease liability less any lease incentives receivable, based on the
lease term of the modified lease by discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate at the effective date of the modification.
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The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease modifications (Continued)

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities by making
corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-of-use asset. When the modified
contract contains a lease component and one or more additional lease or non-
lease components, the Group allocates the consideration in the modified contract
to each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease
component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

The Group as a lessor

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance or operating
leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee, the contract is
classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of
the leased asset, and such costs are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term except for investment properties measured under fair value
model. Variable lease payments for operating leases that depend on an index or a
rate are estimated and included in the total lease payments to be recognised on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Variable lease payments that do not depend

on an index or a rate are recognised as income when they arise.

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

When a contract includes both leases and non-lease components, the Group
applies HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” (“HKFRS 15”) to
allocate consideration in a contract to lease and non-lease components. Non-lease
components are separated from lease component on the basis of their relative
stand-alone selling prices.
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The Group as a lessor (Continued)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for under HKFRS 9 and
initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments from lessees.

Lease modification

Changes in considerations of lease contracts that were not part of the original terms
and conditions are accounted for as lease modifications, including lease incentives

provided through forgiveness or reduction of rentals.

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease as a new lease from
the effective date of the modification, considering any prepaid or accrued lease
payments relating to the original lease as part of the lease payments for the new
lease.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of
inventories are determined on a weighted average cost method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the
Group will comply with the conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be

received.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support to the Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they become receivable. Such grants are presented

under “other income, gains and losses’.
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Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Group will be
required to settle that obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration
required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (where the
effect of the time value of money is material).

Onerous Contracts

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised and measured
as provisions. An onerous contract is considered to exist where the Group has a
contract under which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the
contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received from the contract.

Restoration provisions

Provisions for the costs to restore leased assets to their original condition, as
required by the terms and conditions of the lease, are recognised at the date of
inception of the lease at the directors’ best estimate of the expenditure that would
be required to restore the assets. Estimates are regularly reviewed and adjusted as
appropriate for new circumstances.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for the intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they are incurred.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the market place.
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Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value except
for trade receivables arising from contracts with customers which are initially
measured in accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial

liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a
financial asset or financial liability and of allocating interest income and interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the

net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at
amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to
collect contractual cash flows; and

. the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount

outstanding.
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Financial assets (Continued)
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (Continued)
Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method for financial
assets measured subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset, except for financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired
(see below). For financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired,
interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the
amortised cost of the financial asset from the next reporting period. If the credit
risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that the financial
asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the determination that the asset is no
longer credit-impaired.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected credit loss (“ECL”)
model on financial assets (including trade and other receivables, bank balances
and deposits, and rental and utility deposits paid) which are subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date
to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible default events
over the expected life of the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m
ECL”) represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default
events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessment is
done based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of
both the current conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of future

conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables. The ECL on trade

receivables are assessed individually for each debtor.
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Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance equal to 12m
ECL, unless when there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, in which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of
whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant increase in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition.

(1) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In making this assessment,
the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account when assessing

whether credit risk has increased significantly:

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in the financial instrument’s
external (if available) or internal credit rating;

. significant deterioration in external market indicators of credit risk, e.g. a
significant increase in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices for
the debtor;

. existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations;

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating results of the
debtor;
. an actual or expected significant adverse change in the regulatory,

economic, or technological environment of the debtor that results in a

significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.
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Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

@) Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group presumes that the
credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk on a debt instrument
has not increased significantly since initial recognition if the debt instrument
is determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date. A debt instrument is
determined to have low credit risk if (i) it has a low risk of default, (ii) the borrower
has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near
term and (iii) adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the longer
term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its
contractual cash flow obligations. The Group considers a debt instrument to have
low credit risk when it has an internal or external credit rating of “investment

grade” as per globally understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to identify
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying significant increase
in credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

(ii) Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an event of default occurs
when information developed internally or obtained from external sources indicates
that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without
taking into account any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default has occurred when a
financial asset is more than 90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.
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Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iii)  Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events of default that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have
occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable
data about the following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating
to the borrower’s financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a

concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other

financial reorganisation.

(iv)  Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating that
the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been placed under liquidation
or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets written off may
still be subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery procedures,
taking into account legal advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a
derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of default, loss given
default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at
default. The assessment of the probability of default and loss given default is based
on historical data adjusted by forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL
reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined with the

respective risks of default occurring as the weights.
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Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are
due to the Group in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive, discounted at the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset unless the financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case interest income is

calculated based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to
the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and

substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and

receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification of debt or equity
Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities or as

equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets
of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the

Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables, rental deposits received and
secured bank borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.
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Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group’s
obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity, transactions
in currencies other than the functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on the
retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements, the assets
and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expenses items are translated at the average exchange
rates for the period. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the heading of translation
reserve.

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred
tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit
differs from “loss before tax” as reported in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income because of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been

enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such investments are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they

are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of the reporting
period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on
tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences
that would follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxes for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts of such properties are
presumed to be recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted.
The presumption is rebutted when the investment property is depreciable and is
held within a business model whose objective is to consume substantially all of
the economic benefits embodied in the investment property over time, rather than
through sale.
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For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing transactions in which the
Group recognises the right-of-use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group
first determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to the right-of-use
assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are attributable to the lease
liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12 “Income Taxes” requirements to the leasing
transaction as a whole. Temporary differences relating to right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities are assessed on a net basis. Excess of depreciation on right-of-use
assets over the lease payments for the principal portion of lease liabilities results in
net deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable
right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate
to income taxes levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to
items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to the defined contribution retirement benefit plans, including state-
managed retirement benefit schemes and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme,
are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them
to the contributions.

Termination benefits

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the earlier of when the Group
entity can no longer withdraw the offer of the termination benefit and when it
recognises any related restructuring costs.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted amount of the
benefits expected to be paid as and when employees rendered the services. All
short-term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS
requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.
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Short-term employee benefits (Continued)

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such as wages and
salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after deducting any amount already paid.

Share options granted to employees of the group entities

Equity-settled share-based payments are measured at the fair value of the equity
instruments at the grant date. Details regarding the determination of the fair value
of equity-settled share-based transactions are set out in note 29.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments determined at the
grant date without taking into consideration all non-market vesting conditions is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s
estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share option reserve). At the end of each reporting period, the
Group revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest
based on assessment of all relevant non-market vesting conditions. The impact of
the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such
that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding
adjustment to the share option reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously recognised in share
option reserve will be transferred to share premium. When the share options are
forfeited/cancelled after the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
retained profits.

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described in
note 4, the directors of the Company are required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.
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The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations
(see below), that the directors have made in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts

recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities arising from investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the directors of the
Company have reviewed the Group’s investment property portfolios and concluded
that:

@) the Group’s investment properties located in Hong Kong are not held
under a business model whose objective is to consume substantially all of
the economic benefits embodied in the investment properties over time.
Therefore, in measuring the Group’s deferred taxation on investment
properties located in Hong Kong, the directors of the Company have
determined that the presumption that the carrying amounts of investment
properties measured using the fair value model are recovered entirely
through sale is not rebutted. As a result, the Group has not recognised any
deferred taxes on changes in fair value of investment properties located in
Hong Kong as the Group is not subject to any income taxes on disposal of
its investment properties.

(ii) the Group’s investment properties located in the PRC are held under a
business model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties over time.
Therefore, in measuring the Group’s deferred taxation on investment
properties located in the PRC, the directors of the Company have
determined whether the presumption that the carrying amounts of
investment properties measured using the fair value model are recovered
entirely through sale is rebutted and the Group has recognised deferred
tax on changes in fair value of investment properties on the basis that the
deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that will follow from the manner
in which the Group expects at the end of the reporting period to recover the
carrying amount of the investment properties.
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The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets

and liabilities within the next financial year.

Impairment on the Ildentified PPE and the Identified ROU assets (as defined below)

Property, plant and equipment other than leasehold land and buildings and motor
vehicles (the “Identified PPE”) and right-of-use assets other than leasehold
land outside Hong Kong (the “Identified ROU assets™) are carried at cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. In
determining whether an asset is impaired, the management of the Group has
to exercise judgement and make assumptions, particularly when assessing: (1)
whether an event has occurred or any indicators that may affect the asset value;
(2) whether the carrying value of an asset can be supported by the recoverable
amount, in the case of value in use, the net present value of future cash flows which
are estimated based upon the continued use of the asset; and (3) the appropriate
key assumptions to be applied in estimating the value in use included in the cash
flow projections. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the assets belong, including allocation of corporate assets
when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be established, otherwise
recoverable amount is determined at the smallest group of cash generating
units, for which the relevant corporate assets have been allocated. Changing the
underlying assumptions and key inputs, including but not limited to the forecasted
revenue, gross profit margins and discount rates, in the cash flow projections, could
materially affect the estimated recoverable amounts. These net discounted cash
flows projections, are subject to greater uncertainties with the continued travel
restrictions into Hong Kong due to the COVID-19 pandemic disrupting the Group’s
retail operations.
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Impairment on the ldentified PPE and the Identified ROU assets (as defined below)
(Continued)

As at 31st March, 2021, the carrying amounts of the Identified PPE and the
Identified ROU assets are HK$8,218,000 and HK$54,134,000, respectively (2020:
Identified PPE of HK$14,401,000 and Identified ROU assets of HK$176,384,000
respectively). The recoverable amounts of the Identified PPE and the Identified
ROU assets have been determined by the management of the Group using value
in use calculations of the individual retail stores to which these assets belong.
The value in use calculations are based on the discounted cash flow projections
(“Forecasts”) based on management’s expectations on the market development and
the past performance, where the key input parameters include forecasted revenue,
gross profit margins and discount rates. The Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the retail stores as it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of each of the Identified PPE and the Identified ROU assets individually. During
the year ended 31st March, 2021, impairment losses on the Identified PPE and
Identified ROU assets of HK$3,873,000 and HK$53,619,000 (2020: impairment
losses on the Identified PPE and Identified ROU assets of HK$6,790,000 and
HK$53,717,000), respectively, were recognised in profit or loss.
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Valuation of investment properties

Investment properties are stated at fair value based on the valuation performed
by independent professional valuers. The determination of the fair value involves

certain assumptions of market conditions which are set out in note 15.

In relying on the valuation report, the directors of the Company have exercised
their judgement and are satisfied that the method of valuation is reflective of the
current market conditions. Whilst the management considers the valuations of
the Group’s investment properties are the best estimates, the ongoing COVID-19
pandemic continues to create uncertainty and volatility in the market and,
depending on how the COVID-19 pandemic may progress and evolve, has led
to higher degree of uncertainty in respect of the valuations in the current year.
Changes to these assumptions, including the potential risk of any market violation,
policy, geopolitical and social changes or other unexpected incidents as a result of
change in macroeconomic environment, travel restrictions implemented by many
countries, increased complexity in international trade tensions geopolitics, changes
in policy direction and/or mortgage requirements, or other unexpected incidents
would result in changes in the fair values of the Group’s investment properties and
the corresponding adjustments to the amount of gain or loss reported in profit or
loss.

Allowance for inventories

Inventories are stated at lower of cost and net realisable values. Management has
determined the allowance for obsolete and slow-moving inventory items at the
end of reporting period with reference to the inventory ageing analysis, changes in
expected market conditions impacting demand and pricing and by comparing the
carrying amount of inventories with their estimated net realisable values, primarily
based on the latest selling prices. When estimating the net realisable values of
the inventories, significant degree of management judgement, assumptions and
estimation are applied. When the net realisable values of the inventories are
lower than expectation, further allowance may arise. As at 31st March, 2021,
the carrying amount of inventories (net of allowance of HK$18,506,000 (2020:
HK$12,394,000)) is HK$195,156,000 (2020: HK$356,014,000).
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For the year ended 31st March, 2021
5. Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources of
Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Provision of ECL for trade receivables

The Group estimates the amount of lifetime ECL for the trade receivables
individually based on internal credit rating. Estimated loss rates used in the
assessment are based on the Group’s historical default rates for each debtor
taking into consideration forward-looking information that is reasonable and
supportable available without undue costs or effort. At every reporting date, the
historical observed default rates are reassessed and changes in the forward-looking
information are considered.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. Due to greater financial
uncertainty triggered by the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group has increased the
expected loss rates in the current year as there is higher risk that a prolonged
pandemic could led to increased credit default rates. The information about the
ECL on the Group’s trade receivables is disclosed in note 35(b).
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 E- T —F=A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st March, 2021
6. ZEEXEBEOEER 6. Revenue and Segment Information
(a) EXH (a) Revenue
BE-E-_—F=HA=+—HLEE For the year ended 31st March, 2021
DHFEREEEFEHN WA Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers
L[4 R st
Cosmetics Fashion Total
FExT FHER FET
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
EmER Types of goods
HE A m Sale of cosmetics 351,570 - 351,570
R R HE LR Manufacture and sale of ladies
fashion - 165,676 165,676
fast Total 351,570 165,676 517,246
WA TR R i Timing of revenue recognition
ERE—HE A point in time 351,570 165,676 517,246
& 35 Geographical markets
BB MR Hong Kong and Macau 351,570 155,030 506,600
Fh B 2 B th3h [ Other regions of the PRC - 10,646 10,646
st Total 351,570 165,676 517,246
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For the year ended 31st March, 2020

PIRREEEEHZWA Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers
et e Bt
Cosmetics Fashion Total
THET TET TET
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
EmER Types of goods
HE it m Sale of cosmetics 836,040 = 836,040
U35 2 8H S AR S Manufacture and sale of ladies
fashion - 206,357 206,357
st Total 836,040 206,357 1,042,397
U A\ e R Y B Timing of revenue recognition
R A point in time 836,040 206,357 1,042,397
& % Geographical markets
E5 RORM Hong Kong and Macau 833,652 193,198 1,026,850
FR B 2 H A 3 [ Other regions of the PRC 2,388 13,159 15,547
s Total 836,040 206,357 1,042,397
B IRV HE 28 T 35 65 6 2 AR - g AF  For sales of ladies fashion to the wholesale market, revenue is recognised when
EmiHEESE R B Efii#%  control of the goods has transferred, being when the goods have been shipped to
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the wholesaler’s specific location (delivery). Following delivery, the wholesaler
has full discretion over the manner of distribution and price to sell the goods,
has the primary responsibility when on selling the goods and bears the risks of
obsolescence and loss in relation to the goods. The normal credit term is 60 to 120
days upon delivery.

For sales of cosmetics products and ladies fashion to retail customers, revenue
is recognised when control of the goods has transferred, being at the point the
customer purchases the goods at the retail shops. Payment of the transaction price
is due immediately at the point the customer purchases the goods. For sales of
ladies fashion to retail customers through sales counters in department stores, the
normal credit term is 30 to 60 days upon the customer purchases the goods.
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Annual Report 2021

For the year ended 31st March, 2021
6. Revenue and Segment Information (Continued)

(a) Revenue (Continued)

There are no transaction price allocated to the performance obligations that are
unsatisfied (or partially unsatisfied) as at the end of the reporting period.

(b) Segment information

Information reported to the executive directors of the Company, being the chief
operating decision makers (“CODM?”), for the purposes of resource allocation
and assessment of segment performance focuses on types of goods delivered. The
information reported to the CODM is further categorised into different retail shops
within Hong Kong and Macau, each of which is considered as a separate operating
segment by the CODM. For segment reporting, these individual operating segments
have been aggregated into a single reportable segment.

The Group’s reportable and operating segments under HKFRS 8 “Operating
Segments” (“HKFRS 8”) are Cosmetics and Fashion, of which principal activities
are as follows:

Cosmetics — Sale of cosmetics
Fashion — Manufacture and sale of ladies fashion
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BEe—Z2 - —%=-fA=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st March, 2021
6. BEBERIEER(EZ) 6. Revenue and Segment Information (Continued)

(b) DEERE) (b) Segment information (Continued)
DY s e FAE Segment revenue and results

NTRAEZEERREDEEHDANEE 2 The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by operating and

mREEDHT © reportable segments.
BE-Z-_—F=A=+—HLEEE For the year ended 31st March, 2021
{ethm i DEBE e RE
Segment
Cosmetics Fashion Total Eliminations Consolidated
FTHERx THET FTHERT FTHERx FTHERT

HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000

BEE REVENUE
gy External sales 351,570 165,676 517,246 - 517,246
IRz HE Inter-segment sales - 28 28 (28) -
351,570 165,704 517,274 (28) 517,246
SEEE SEGMENT LOSS (104,898) (34,318) (139,216) - (139,216)
REMENTEBETRE Decrease in fair value of
investment properties (28,929)
Hipg A ~ Wz K &8 Other income, gains and losses 5,666
RRITHER Central administration costs (7,093)
BB A Finance costs (9,747)
BRI Loss before tax (179,319)
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Segment revenue and results (Continued)

For the year ended 31st March, 2020

1kt 533 Py FE H i fRE
Segment
Cosmetics Fashion Total  Eliminations Consolidated
FHT THAT THAT FHT FHT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BET REVENUE

HINEE External sales 836,040 206,357 1,042,397 - 1,042,397
DRz HEE Inter-segment sales - 187 187 (187) -
836,040 206,544 1,042,584 (187) 1,042,397
PEER SEGMENT LOSS (173,718) (57,202) (230,920) - (230,920)

BEMENTEETR Decrease in fair value of
investment properties (11,707)
Hip A - e RE1E Other income, gains and losses 8,156
HRITHER Central administration costs (7,069)
& B Finance costs (14,138)
BRBEAI SR Loss before tax (255,678)

RREFEN S B2 HEHRRITHS
BIEaTHE -
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Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates for both years.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as the Group’s
accounting policies described in note 4. Segment loss represents the loss before tax
incurred by each segment without allocation of change in fair value of investment
properties, certain other income, gains and losses, central administration costs
and finance costs. This is the measure reported to the CODM for the purposes of

resource allocation and performance assessment.
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(E-T - —F=A=1T—HItFE For the year ended 31st March, 2021
6. EEBRIBER(E) 6. Revenue and Segment Information (Continued)

(b) DEER(E) (b) Segment information (Continued)
DEEYG S e AR (4E) Segment revenue and results (Continued)

HREZEERRALERMNDOBREER
BREZEMUDEEREFERE - KL
B2 B2 -

No analysis of segment assets and liabilities is presented as the CODM do not
review such information for the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment.

H b 3 B A Other segment information
HESAEERPIEENRATELER Amounts included in the measure of segment results or regularly reviewed by the
RATHEHZ 28 CODM:
(4.5 533 PRBR AT fe]
Segment
Cosmetics Fashion Total Corporate  Consolidated
TER TER TR TR TRL
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
—E--F 2021
FE®E - BENRIEREE  Scrap, shrinkage and provision for
2B slow moving inventories 12,747 2,092 14,839 - 14,839
E¥ BERREZNE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 6,425 4,840 11,265 1,873 13,138
FREEEZNE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 58,877 42,064 100,941 - 100,941
HEEX  BRREEZ Net gain on disposal of property,
Fla plant and equipment - 85 85 - 85
BARX Capital expenditure
—E¥  BER&E — Property, plant and equipment 1,116 4,002 5,118 - 5,118
—FRELE - Right-of-use assets 9,856 23,189 33,045 - 33,045
BRIESOZE Reversal of onerous contracts 2,710 562 3,272 - 3,272
EF  WEREEIRE Impairment of property, plant and
equipment 998 2,875 3,873 - 3,873
FREEE ZRE Impairment of right-of-use assets 44,348 9,271 53,619 - 53,619
BHEEBBEAETZ Impairment loss under expected
mEEE credit loss model - 1,466 1,466 - 1,466
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VEEKO INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

e EmR BN
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEe—_Z - —9F=-—A=1+—HLFE For the year ended 31st March, 2021
6. EEBRIBER(E) 6. Revenue and Segment Information (Continued)

(b) DEERE) (b) Segment information (Continued)
H o EER(AE) Other segment information (Continued)
b Bk DERE NG| e
Segment
Cosmetics Fashion Total Corporate Consolidated
TET FHT FHL THET TEL
HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000
—TCTF 2020
GERE EREREREE Scrap, shrinkage and provision for
B slow moving inventories 7,641 2,730 10,371 = 10,371
E¥ BERREZNE Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment 13,994 7,043 21,037 2,505 23,542
FEREEEZNE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 133,192 56,406 189,598 = 189,598
HEEE  BEREEZ Net loss on disposal of property,
FEE plant and equipment 653 248 901 - 901
BARX Capital expenditure
-E¥ BELKZE — Property, plant and equipment 5,775 6,743 12,518 = 12,518
—FREEE - Right-of-use assets 131,382 45,179 176,561 - 176,561
BRtAHEE Reversal of onerous contracts 2,240 2,390 4,630 - 4,630
E%  BERRXBZAE Impairment of property, plant and
equipment 4,689 2,101 6,790 - 6,790
FREBEZRE Impairment of right-of-use assets 47,068 6,649 53,717 - 53,7117
BRHEEBRRAETZ Impairment loss under expected
HEEE credit loss model = 3,995 3,995 = 3,995
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st March, 2021
6. Revenue and Segment Information (Continued)

(b) Segment information (Continued)

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are principally located in Hong Kong and Macau, and
other regions of the PRC. Information about the Group’s revenue from external
customers is presented based on the geographical locations of operations.

2021 2020

FERT FHT

HK$°000 HK$’000

B8 KR Hong Kong and Macau 506,600 1,026,850
7 E A b [ Other regions of the PRC 10,646 15,547
517,246 1,042,397

BEREAKRETANRS 2 EEBhBA
AEBEEFEBEFETEIOR °

ERAKEERBEE(TRBRLERE
BENRENESES) ZERDREER
R 27 o

No revenue from a customer of the Group contributed over 10% of the total revenue
of the Group of the corresponding years.

Information about the Group’s non-current assets (excluding deferred tax assets
and rental deposits paid) is presented based on geographical locations of the assets.

SERBRA A

2021 2020

FHERT FAxT

HK$°000 HK$’000

B ROBRPY Hong Kong and Macau 411,689 555,833
B 2 B At b [ Other regions of the PRC 80,437 74,704
g 6E South Korea 158 286
492,284 630,323
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VEEKO INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

V&
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEe—_Z - —9F=-—A=1+—HLFE For the year ended 31st March, 2021
7.

HiA - sk EE 7.  Other Income, Gains and Losses

2021 2020
FTER FHET
HK$°000 HK$’000
RELEYEZ2HSRA Rental income from investment properties,

(BETAEKZ ) with negligible outgoings 5,631 7,471
HITFEMA Bank interest income 31 59
SHIE N E 8 Net exchange loss (3,065) (1,011)
HEES  MERRBZ Net gain (loss) on disposal of property,

Wz (E548 ) 558 plant and equipment 85 (901)
BRIEEHREB BRI (M718) Reversal of onerous contract

provision (note 18) 3,272 4,630

EfNHESRE 2 FEHA Interest income from rental deposits paid 1,436 1,917
ISR GEC ) Government grants (Note) 43,066 _
RIEFRE 2 Wes Gain on termination of leases 2,795 =
Hith Others 6,533 3,478
59,784 15,643

Wizt - RAREFE - AEEFL2019BAEE  Note: During the current year, the Group recognised government grants of

T AE A B B Wk e B A SR B 478 BE 4D HK$43,066,000 in respect of received COVID-19-related subsidies, of which
43,066,000 7T+ H 134,442,000/ HK$34,442,000 relates to the Employment Support Scheme provided by the
TCHE BE P I B B BT IR B P Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. The remaining
Rtz [RELFEGE ] - FIrSER amounts were recognised in profit or loss upon receipt, and there were no
WKt ABRT @ BZEBA#H unfulfilled conditions attached to these government grants.

B SR & S (R A -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E-T - —F=F=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31st March, 2021
8. A& A 8.  Finance Costs
2021 2020
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
RITEENF S Interest expense on bank borrowings 9,747 14,138
HERENNERX Interest expense on lease liabilities 5,691 11,447
15,438 25,585
9. RBHMAX 9. Income Tax Expense
2021 2020
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
FIER S () B - The charge (credit) comprises:
BERISH Hong Kong Profits Tax
INFE[E Current year 911 1,005
BAFE(BRERG)BETRE (Over)underprovision in prior years (24) 423
887 1,428
H it RhERE B AS Income tax in other jurisdictions
REE Current year 35 1,384
BAFEBERE Overprovision in prior years (38) (77)
3) 1,307
EERTE(MTa£19) Deferred tax (note 19) 4,679 35
5,563 2,770
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On 21st March, 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed The Inland
Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill”’) which introduces the two-
tiered profits tax rates regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28th March, 2018
and was gazetted on the following day. Under the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime, the first HK$2 million of assessable profits of the qualifying group entity
will be taxed at 8.25%, and assessable profits above HK$2 million will be taxed
at 16.5%. The assessable profits of other group entities not qualifying for the two-
tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

Accordingly, the Hong Kong Profits Tax of the qualifying group entity is
calculated at 8.25% on the first HK$2 million of the estimated assessable profits
and at 16.5% on the estimated assessable profits above HK$2 million.

Certain subsidiaries operating in Macau are subject to Macau complementary tax
of 12%, subject to finalisation of the tax liability with the relevant tax authority. In
addition, for the years ended 31st March, 2021 and 2020, a special complementary
tax incentive was provided to the effect that the tax-free income threshold was
Macau Pataca (“MOP”) 600,000 (equivalent to HK$582,000) with profit above
MOP600,000 (equivalent to HK$582,000) being taxed at a fixed rate of 12%.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) (the “EIT Law”) and
Implementation Regulations of the EIT Law, the tax rate of PRC subsidiaries is
25%.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-Z-—F=A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st March, 2021

9. FEBEZ(EZ) 9. Income Tax Expense (Continued)
REFZHEHBY BEEEREEME The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the loss before tax per
EWARZGHATEEBHNT the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as

follows:

2021 2020
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
KRB A BT 18 Loss before tax (179,319) (255,678)

REBNESHHE16.5%tE 1B  Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate

of 16.5% (29,588) (42,187)
BAREMAEEBENESZ Effect of different tax rates applicable to
TREME L operations in other jurisdictions (158) (519)
PBIAMES MR RIS 2 f7 8522 Tax effect of expenses not deductible
for tax purposes 14,587 14,830
PR IEm S EERHWAZTIEZE  Tax effect of income not taxable for tax
purposes (8,591) (1,040)
B ST A M AR ER 2 FAIEE 1R Utilisation of tax losses previously
not recognised - (61)
MR TEARI AR S v RiIa e 2 Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 24,604 31,461
i AR Z AT E R 258 2 BB R 2 Tax effect of deductible temporary
difference not recognised 210 590
SRIRER 2 Al IR e b =58 Tax effect of reversal of deductible temporary
BEZFHIEME difference previously recognised 4,746 _
BEFE(GBRERE)BETR (Over)underprovision in prior years (62) 346
FEHRRE, Rz B E Tax effect of the two-tiered profit tax
rates regime/tax exemption (185) (650)
REFENF ST Income tax expense for the year 5,563 2,770
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A REME \
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEe—_Z - —9F=-—A=1+—HLFE For the year ended 31st March, 2021
10. TFEBE 10. Loss for the Year
2021 2020
FET FHET
HK$°000 HK$’000
AEFEEEHNBRTHIEE - Loss for the year has been arrived at after
charging:
STRMNFEX(BEERHE) Employee benefits expenses (including
(Kiatil) : directors’ emoluments) (note 11):
B R H b1 T Salaries and other benefits 128,529 189,151
LARR AR /5 Bt 2 (B 1 Share-based payments 59 51
RRENET 2= Retirement benefits schemes contributions 6,107 9,786
134,695 198,988
ZERRT B & Auditors’ remuneration
— RS — audit services 2,513 2,044
— IR BURTS — non-audit services 365 384
BRAERAI 2 FERA (K ZE) Cost of inventories recognised as expenses
(Note) 321,356 645,047
EX BEREEZITE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 13,138 23,542
EREESEZINE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 100,941 189,598

et BRARBAXZEENABERFE Note: Cost of inventories recognised as expenses included scrap, shrinkage
HE -BEEREAEEZEE and provision for slow moving inventories of HK$14,839,000 (2020:
14,839,000 B T ( = & = T F HK$10,371,000).
10,371,00077T) °
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BEe—Z2 - —%=-fA=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st March, 2021
11. EERTHARMNE 11. Directors’ and the Chief Executive Officer’s Emoluments
ENKEMANL(ZE—ZFE : +6)ES The emoluments paid or payable to each of the six (2020: seven) directors were as
BEAZMEWT : follows:
—E--& 2021
HrEEn
Executive director "
HERZL E3: )
(iges) Ezom)
Ms.Lam  Non-executive BuHEEem
BEIAE Yuk Sum  director ¥ Independent non-executive director ¥
Mr. Cheng (Chief WXREE BuEEE BXEEE  BREERE
Chung Man, Executive Mr.Lam  Mr. Cheng Man Mr. Yeung  Mr. Au-Yeung At
Johnny Officer)’ ManTin  Loong, Monty Wing Kay ~ Hau Cheong Total
TiEn TR TiEn FiEn TR TiEn TR
HKS00  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$000  HKS000
e Pees - - 130 130 150 130 540
Hfbie Other emoluments
He R Salaries and allowances 1,482 627 - - - - 2,109
FRETE RIS Retirement benefits
scheme contributions 18 30 - - - - 48
ikt Total emoluments 1,500 657 130 130 150 130 2,697
—32%F 2020
HiFEEm
Executive director ¢
HERZL
(Tl@s) gz
Ms. Lam  Non-executive BuarEs
HETEL Yuk Sum director ¢!/ Independent non-executive director "?)
Mr. Cheng (Chief  #ouiREE  BXEXE  EREET  HkERE  BREESRE
Chung Man, Executive Mr.Lam Mr.ChengMan  Dr.Fok Kam  Mr. Yeung M. Au-Yeung At
Johnny Officer)® Man Tin  Loong, Monty Chu,John ~ WingKay  Hau Cheong Total

TAL T ThL TAL TAL TAL TAL T
HKS$'000 HK$"000 HK$"000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
(Hiitd) (Hizte)
(Note d) (Note e)

e Fees - - 130 67 63 150 130 540
Hfpe Other emoluments
FeREM Salaries and allowances 1,404 594 - - - = - 1,998
ERBREIES  Retirement benefits
scheme contributions 18 28 - - - - - 46
Hefm Total emoluments 1422 622 130 67 63 150 130 2,584
& MEFRZLENMBRRRITHAE & Ms. Lam Yuk Sum is also the Chief Executive Officer of the Company and her
THEERERAR I ME BREREE emoluments disclosed above included those services rendered by her as the
BB R RS - Chief Executive Officer. 109
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(d)
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(e)

RAFEERN AfUGEHALEE
ZEZTF  —)AREES  BEH
e FBEN EXHEN - ST A
“ECDF O EeHATHBMEM
T

& MR BERZ
185 R L b 42 ]

B R IR AH A 2 22 SR

RARAREAFT &R

Notes:

(@)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly for their
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company and
the Group.

The non-executive director’s and independent non-executive directors’
emoluments shown above were mainly for their services as directors of the
Company.

During the years ended 31st March, 2021 and 2020, no emoluments were paid
by the Group to the directors and the Chief Executive Officer as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. In
addition, neither the Chief Executive Officer nor any of the directors waived any
emoluments during the years ended 31st March, 2021 and 2020.

Mr. Cheng Man Loong, Monty was appointed as an independent non-executive
director on 26th September, 2019.

Dr. Fok Kam Chu, John resigned as an independent non-executive director on
26th September, 2019.

During the year, the five highest paid individuals included one (2020: one) director

of the Company, whose emoluments are set out in note 11 above. The emoluments

of the remaining four (2020: four) highest paid individuals are as follows:

2021 2020
FHER FHET
HK$°000 HK$’000

Salaries, share-based payments and
other benefits 3,072 3,582
Performance related incentive payments 30 69
Retirement benefits scheme contributions 71 71
3,173 3,722




BEBERZERBRAL A

g e B R R M
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B E - —F A= T—HIFE For the year ended 31st March, 2021

12. EEBMME(Z) 12. Employees’ Emoluments (Continued)
2021 2020
EE#®A EE#E
No. of No. of
employees employees

BEMEN T REE : Their remuneration was within
the following bands:

T #81,000,00078 7T Not exceeding HK$1,000,000 4 4
BHE-_Z-_—GFR-_ZFT-_ZTF=A=1+— During the years ended 31st March, 2021 and 2020, no emoluments were paid by

AIEFE  AEBTEAZEMRS%HA  the Group to these five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon
TR AME  (EAEMAAREEZFEK  joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

BB -
13. BRE 13. Dividends
RAFERNERR/DIRZIEE Dividends recognised as distribution during the year:
2021 2020
THET FHET
HK$°000 HK$°000
—EoTFERARE - & 2020 final dividend of nil
(ZB=ZF : _T—NEFE (2020: 2019 final dividend of HKO.1 cent
REARR B EARO. 1) per share) - 2,518
ERZGCARTRNBEZF-—FK=  The board of directors has decided not to declare a final dividend for the years

FoRFE-A=+ BULEFERMKRE - ended 31st March, 2021 and 2020.
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VEEKO INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

e EmR BN
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEe—_Z - —9F=-—A=1+—HLFE For the year ended 31st March, 2021

14. SREE 14. Loss Per Share

KRARER ABLBRERREEERTY The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share attributable to owners
R E 518 184,882,000 (== —=  of the Company is based on the loss for the year of HK$184,882,000 (2020:
£E 1 258,448,000/8 70 )5t E o ANA R LR HK$258,448,000). The weighted average number of ordinary shares of the

& e goan R Al Company set out below.
2021 2020
R EE Number of shares
METEGREREE 2 Weighted average number of ordinary shares
e 3F AR AN AE S 15 2R for the purpose of basic loss per share 2,518,001,334 2,518,001,334
HE_Z_—FR-_Z_ZF=[=+— The computation of diluted loss per share for the years ended 31st March, 2021

HIFFEZ8BREEBHENTELEMRZ  and 2020 does not assume the exercise of the Company’s share options since their
KRR ZERERETE - HARZFMREN  assumed exercise would result in a decrease in loss per share.
TEEEERERRD -
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ETIEMEZRERERFEIL
KERERDEE - ik REZRE
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BREE D Bl 438,633,000 T (=Z
— T4 11,381,000/ 7T) % 163,00075
(=T =4 : 200,000/ 7T) WH
BRMAEE BEERZREBEZIE
MEREIAEREEEZHBLT
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A
ZE

EREX BMERXBEARER
BEEZATFEERZ D B A
16,774,000 B 70 ( = & = & F
387,000?&73)&1,233,000;‘%:57_[:(:%E
Z T4 3,940,00075 7T ) HIRRIE

FIEZ 2 5 Bl 7%77000/’675(77f

Z 4 : 97,0007 7T ) K 308,000 7T
(ZZE T4 : 985,000/67C) % + B

BEEAREMEEKAPER -

FHET

HK$°000
FAIR VALUE
At 1st April, 2019 186,095
Addition 128,458
Transferred from property, plant and equipment (Note) 1,768
Transferred from right-of-use assets (Note) 4,140
Net decrease in fair value recognised in profit or loss (11,707)
Exchange realignment (2,641)
At 31st March, 2020 306,113
Transferred from property, plant and equipment (Note) 55,407
Transferred from right-of-use assets (Note) 1,396
Net decrease in fair value recognised in profit or loss (28,929)
Exchange realignment 4,362
At 31st March, 2021 338,349

Note:

The use of certain industrial properties have been changed upon the inception of
the operating leases entered into with tenants. As a result, during the year ended
31st March, 2021, the industrial properties previously included in property,
plant and equipment and the relevant land use rights included in right-of-use
assets with carrying values of HK$38,633,000 (2020: HK$1,381,000) and
HK$163,000 (2020: HK$200,000), respectively, were transferred to investment
properties. The properties were valued by Jones Lang LaSalle Limited
(“JLL”) and Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and Advisory Limited
(“JLLCAA”) based on the income capitalisation approach at the date of transfer.

The fair value gains on transfer of property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets of HK$16,774,000 (2020: HK$387,000) and HK$1,233,000
(2020: HK$3,940,000), net of the deferred tax charge of HK$77,000 (2020:
HK$97,000) and HK$308,000 (2020: HK$985,000), respectively, were
recognised in other comprehensive income on the date of transfer.
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The investment properties of the Group represents the parking spaces in an
industrial building located in Hong Kong, commercial properties located in Hong
Kong and certain industrial properties located in the PRC and Hong Kong. All of
the Group’s properties interests held to earn rental and/or for capital appreciation
purposes are measured using the fair value model and are classified and accounted

for as investment properties.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31st March, 2021 and 2020
have been arrived at on the basis of valuations carried out on that date by JLL and
JLLCAA, independent qualified professional valuers not connected with the Group
and possessing the appropriate qualifications and experience in the valuation of
properties in the relevant locations. JLL and JLLCAA are members of the Hong

Kong Institute of Surveyors.

The valuations was determined using 1) the direct comparison approach for
parking spaces and an industrial property located in Hong Kong and 2) the income
capitalisation approach for the commercial properties located in Hong Kong and
industrial properties located in PRC. Direct comparison approach reflects market
observable transactions for similar properties, mainly adjusted for differences
in the location and condition of the investment properties. Income capitalisation
approach reflects the rental income of contractual tenancy capitalised for the
unexpired terms of tenancy and the reversionary market rent after expiry of tenancy
in capitalisation. There have been no changes to the valuation technique used

during the year.

When estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best use of the
properties is considered to be their current use.

One of the key inputs used when valuing the parking spaces was the market
observable price of similar parking spaces which ranged from HK$1,540,000 to
HK$3,000,000 (2020: HK$1,600,000 to HK$3,000,000). One of the key inputs
used in valuing the industrial property located in Hong Kong was the market
observable price per square foot of similar properties which ranged from HK$5,057
to HK$6,152 (2020: N/A). The decrease in the market prices of the parking spaces
and the price per square foot of industry properties located in Hong Kong would
result in a decrease in the fair value of the parking spaces and the industrial
property located in Hong Kong respectively, and vice versa.
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Two of the key inputs used in valuing the commercial properties located in
Hong Kong were 1) the capitalisation rate of 2.40% (2020: 2.40%) and 2) the
monthly market rent of HK$220 (2020: HK$289) per square foot. Two of the
key inputs used in valuing the industrial properties located in the PRC were 1)
the capitalisation rate of 5.00% (2020: 5.00%) and 2) the monthly market rent
ranging from RMB22 to RMB75 (2020: RMB20 to RMBI91) per square meter. Any
increase in the capitalisation rate would result in a decrease in the fair value of the
commercial and industrial properties, and vice versa and, any increase in monthly
market rent per square foot/meter would result in an increase in the fair value of the
commercial and industrial properties, and vice versa.

The Group’s investment properties are categorised within level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy as at 31st March, 2021 and 2020.

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the year.

The Group has pledged investment properties with a total of HK$338,349,000
(2020: HK$306,113,000) to secure general banking facilities granted to the Group.

On 2nd March, 2019, Colourmix Cosmetics Company Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a provisional sale and purchase agreement
with the vendor, an independent third party, to acquire the whole of ground floor
of No. 88 San Hong Street North New Territories, Hong Kong (the “Property”) for
a consideration of HK$117,500,000. The total cost of the Property together with
transaction costs such as stamp duty was approximately HK$128,458,000. The
acquisition of the Property was completed on 18th June, 2019 and the Property has
been accounted for as an investment property since the property has already been
leased to an individual third party since the completion of the acquisition.
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COST

At 1st April, 2019

Exchange realignment

Additions

Disposals/write-off

Transferred to investment properties

At 31st March, 2020

Exchange realignment

Additions

Disposals/write-off

Transferred to investment properties

At 31st March, 2021

DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT
At 1st April, 2019

Exchange realignment

Provided for the year

Impairment loss recognised in profit or loss
Eliminated on disposals/write-off
Transferred to investment properties

At 31st March, 2020

Exchange realignment

Provided for the year

Impairment loss recognised in profit or loss
Eliminated on disposals/write-off
Transferred to investment properties

At 31st March, 2021

CARRYING VALUES
At 31st March, 2021

At 31st March, 2020

BELH g
it =3 BF¥%E  HEREE  GARKE  BOTRG RE &t
Leasehold
landand  Leasehold Plant and Furniture and Office Motor
buildings improvements  machinery fixtures  equipment vehicles Total
TiEn ThR TiEn TiEn TEn TiEn TiEn
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
188,288 118,714 21,852 67,785 22,904 6,028 425,571
(1,763) (1,621) (1,293) (89) (40) (30) (4.836)
- 8,717 1,552 943 1,246 - 12,518
- (16,048) (183) (5,580) (357) - (22,168)
(2,022) - - - - - (2,022)
184,503 109,822 21,928 63,059 23,7153 5,998 409,063
2211 2426 1,962 136 56 42 6,899
- 3934 451 299 434 - 5,118
- (5,714) (1,185) (1,259) 37 - (8,195)
(48,0m) - - - - - (48,071)
138,709 110,468 23,156 62,233 24,206 6,040 364,814
49.801 108,108 20,518 54819 21,358 4,929 259,533
(539) (1,475) (1,221) (59) (33) (29 (3,356)
6,529 8,801 466 6,243 1,083 40 23,542
- 1,517 892 2,681 1,700 - 6,790
- (15,544) (183) (5,155) (355) = (21,37)
(641) - - - - - (641)
55,150 101,407 20472 58,529 23,753 5,320 264,631
759 2,156 1,814 90 55 42 4916
5,060 4959 483 2421 pr 185 13,138
- 2214 1,390 269 - - 3873
- (5,714 (1,185) (1,259) 37 - (8,195)
(9,438) - - - - - (9,438)
51,531 105,022 2974 60,056 23,195 5,547 268,925
§7,178 5,446 182 2,179 411 493 95,889
129,353 8415 1,456 4,530 - 678 144,432

The Group’s leasehold land and buildings are located in Hong Kong and the PRC.
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Leasehold improvements
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Plant and machinery
BN EE

Furniture and fixtures
WMRERE

Office equipment

JUER

Motor vehicles

AEEEKIFIRM(ES7,178,0008 T (==
—Z4F 1 129,353,00078 70 ) 2 FE i &
BF  URGAEEER T —RBRTHE

HE-_ZT-_—4F=A=1+—HLFE
AR THI 1 38,633,000 T (Z T =T 4 :
1,381,000 70 ) c HE L RIEFE
EREREYE  SREHWFERE
16,774,000 70 ( = = T 4F : 387,000/
7T ) (A HIBR IR E X TE 2 77,0007 7T (=
TZTF 97,0007 70) ) R EMEEmRA
FRAER ©

The above items of property, plant and equipment, less their residual values, are
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

RHEFH

Over the terms of the leases

20% R EFEH(AREE /L)

20% or over the terms of the leases, whichever is shorter

25%
20%
33Y,%

20%

The Group has pledged leasehold land and buildings with a carrying value of
HK$87,178,000 (2020: HK$129,353,000) to secure general banking facilities
granted to the Group.

During the year ended 31st March, 2021, leasehold land and buildings with
a carrying value of HK$38,633,000 (2020: HK$1,381,000) was transferred
to investment properties resulting in a gain on revaluation of properties of
HK$16,774,000 (2020: HK$387,000), net of the deferred tax charge of HK$77,000
(2020: HK$97,000) recognised in other comprehensive income.
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Giving the potential adverse impact on the performance of the Group’s retail
stores as a result of COVID-19 pandemic, the management concluded there was
indication for impairment and performed impairment assessment for all the retail
stores in Hong Kong and Macau. The Group estimates the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit to which the assets belong to when it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount individually. The recoverable amount of cash-
generating unit has been determined based on a value in use calculations using cash
flow projections based on forecasts approved by the management of the Group
covering the remaining lease terms with a pre-tax discount rate ranging from 11.7%
to 12.1% per annum (2020: 9.3% to 11.3% per annum) as at 31st March, 2021. The
forecasted revenue and gross profit margin have been determined with reference
to the expected market development and the past performance of the retail stores.
The management conducted impairment assessment on recoverable amounts of the
Identified PPE and the Identified ROU assets as disclosed in this note and note 17,
with carrying amounts of HK$8,218,000 and HK$54,134,000, net of accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses of HK$211,847,000 and HK$397,554,000,
respectively (2020: carrying amount of the Identified PPE of HK$14,401,000 and
carrying amount of the Identified ROU assets HK$176,384,000, net of accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses of HK$204,161,000 and HK$243,154,000).
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The recoverable amount of leasehold land and buildings, motor vehicles and
leasehold land outside Hong Kong are estimated individually.

Based on the result of the assessment, management of the Group determined
that the recoverable amounts of certain cash-generating units are lower than the
corresponding carrying amounts. The impairment amount has been allocated
to each category of the Identified PPE and the Identified ROU assets such that
the carrying amount of each category of asset is not reduced below the highest
of its value in use, fair value less cost of disposal and zero. Based on the value
in use calculations and the allocation, impairment losses of HK$3,873,000 and
HK$53,619,000 (2020: the Identified PPE of HK$6,790,000 and the Identified
ROU assets of HK$53,717,000) have been recognised against the carrying amounts
of the Identified PPE and the Identified ROU assets, respectively.

The carrying amount of the leasehold land and buildings, motor vehicles and
leasehold land outside Hong Kong has not been reduced since the amounts of fair
value less costs of disposal of the leasehold land and buildings, motor vehicles and
leasehold land outside Hong Kong are higher than their carrying amounts.
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CARRYING VALUES

At 1st April, 2019

Exchange realignment

Additions (including adjustments
arising from lease modification)

Depreciation charge

Impairment loss recognised

Transferred to investment properties

At 31st March, 2020

Exchange realignment

Additions (including adjustments
arising from lease modification)

Termination of leases

Depreciation charge

Impairment loss recognised

Transferred to investment properties

At 31st March, 2021

of the date of initial application of

HKFRS 16

Total cash outflow for leases (Note)

and other leases within 12 months

Expenses relating to short-term leases

BEREIIN ZEEHR
HELi WAEYE w@at
Leasehold Retail stores
land outside and office
Hong Kong properties Total
FHIT THT T
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
4,522 243,004 247,526
(267) 27 (294)
- 176,561 176,561
(161) (189,437) (189,598)
— (53,717) (53,717)
(200) = (200)
3,894 176,384 180,278
341 15 356
- 33,045 33,045
- (910) (910)
(160) (100,781) (100,941)
- (53,619) (53,619)
(163) - (163)
3,912 54,134 58,046
2021 2020
FHET T
HK$°000 HK$’000
25,513 86,649
178,170 266,005

Kiit: ZeBeEFERNEEREEE A Note: The amount included the repayment of lease liabilities, interest paid on lease

HEBBEENZME N R
HEKBVIGERREEM B RS E

A 165 BEHR(ZE—AFWmA—
B)stt —EARN EMmEE -

liabilities and payment for short-term leases and other leases within 12 months
of the date of initial application of HKFRS 16 (1st April, 2019).
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During the year ended 31st March, 2021, the land use rights included in right-
of-use assets with a carrying amount of HK$163,000 (2020: HK$200,000) was
transferred to investment properties. The fair value gain of right-of-use assets
of HK$1,233,000 (2020: HK$3,940,000), net of the deferred tax charge of
HK$308,000 (2020: HK$985,000) was recognised in other comprehensive income
at the date of transfer.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of
estimated useful life and lease term, which range from 1 to 27 years (2020: 1 to 27

years).

For both years, the Group leases retail stores and office properties for its
operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed terms ranging from one year
to five years but may have extension options as described below. Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain different terms and conditions. In
determining the lease term and assessing the length of the non-cancellable period,
the Group applies the definition of a contract and determines the period for which
the contract is enforceable.

As at 31st March, 2021, the Group has pledged right-of-use assets with a carrying
value of HK$3,912,000 (2020: HK$3,894,000) to secure general banking facilities
granted to the Group.

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for retail stores. As at 31st
March, 2021 and 2020, the portfolio of short-term leases was similar to the
portfolio of short-term leases to which the short-term lease expense disclosed in the

above.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2021

17. Right-of-use Assets (Continued)

The Group has extension options in a number of leases for retail stores. These are
used to maximise operational flexibility in terms of managing the assets used in
the Group’s operations. The majority of extension held are exercisable only at the
option of the Group and not by the respective lessors.

The Group assesses at lease commencement date whether it is reasonably certain
to exercise the extension options. The potential exposures to these future lease
payments for extension options in which the Group is not reasonably certain to

AREBERBEE R T ¢ exercise is summarised below:
2021 2020
RIFAHE Rt AHE
BENEBE BEMNEE
ERANEE AREE EREANEE RKEE
8 RECGKHIE) BfE  FECRFR)
Potential Potential
future lease future lease
payments not payments not
Lease included in Lease included in
liabilities lease liabilities liabilities lease liabilities
recognised (undiscounted) recognised (undiscounted)
TER TERT FET TET
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
MREBNTERS Retail stores in Hong Kong 10,709 26,280 5,169 10,800
MRBPINTEES Retail stores in Macau - - 647 2,460

Annual Report 2021

colourmix e

MoriMor O  VOCKO  Wanko




TRBAARITEAEBERAER % B H The following table summarised the additional lease liabilities recognised during
FrRBEE BT R TITENEREEE the year ended 31st March, 2021 and 2020 as a result of exercising extension option
MREE - FR_ZTE_TF=F that the Group was not reasonably certain to exercise at lease commencement date:

=+ —HIEFERRRNEIMERE :

2021 2020
FERX FEA
A FATRER BTEN A TTED [EEGREL:D
EEEEE EHEERE SHEEE AREER

Extension Extension

option option
exercisable Extension  exercisable Extension
during the option during the option
year exercised year exercised

HAOBE HABE HAE HA2E

No. of leases No. of leases No. of leases No. of leases

RN EBNTEEMH Retail stores in Hong Kong 2 - 2 1
NRRPNZE RS Retail stores in Macau 1 1 1 _
2021 2020
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$°000

FERNERZEIHNEARE Additional lease liabilities recognised
during the year 1,875 6,290

BEAN - EE A B AR E oA A E In addition, the Group reassesses whether it is reasonably certain to exercise an
AEBRELEEARZ(LE - ARBEEH  extension option, upon the occurrence of either a significant event or a significant

FHE R R SR IEE S TRE R - change in circumstances that is within the control of the lessee. During the year
BE_ZT SR -F-FTF=F=+—  ended 31st March, 2021 and 2020, there was no such triggering event.

HIESFE - SRS -
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The following is the provision for onerous contracts recognised and movement
during the current and prior years:

THERT

HK$°000

At Ist April, 2019 9,111
Reversed for the year (4,630)
At 31st March, 2020 4,481
Reversed for the year (3,272)
At 31st March, 2021 1,209

Provision for onerous contracts is made based on an assessment of the unavoidable
costs of meeting the obligations under the lease agreement, with short-term
leases, that exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under it from
all underperforming retail stores of the cosmetics and fashion businesses. In
accordance with the Group’s accounting policies, the Group reviews the discounted
cash flow forecasts of all of the retail stores with short-term leases under non-
cancellable clause in the respective lease agreements to determine whether there is

any indication of retail stores underperforming.

The provision for onerous contracts is calculated based on discounted cash flow
forecasts of Group’s all underperforming retail stores with short-term leases
to the end of the non-cancellable lease period and discounted with a pre-tax
discount rate ranging from 11.7% to 12.1% (2020: 9.3% to 11.3%) per annum.
Key assumptions used when determining the discounted cash flow forecasts
include revenue growth, gross profit margins and unavoidable costs that will be
incurred during the remaining lease period. Amounts are determined based on past
performance and the management’s expectations on the market development, after
taking into consideration revenue and expenditure growth of the business. As at
31st March, 2021, the provision for onerous contracts was HK$1,209,000 (2020:
HK$4,481,000).
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For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of financial position,

certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset. The following is the

analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial reporting purposes:

2021 2020

FER T

HK$’°000 HK$°000

BEBIRE E Deferred tax assets - 4,745
BETIEAE Deferred tax liabilities (12,724) (11,608)
(12,724) (6,863)

TYRARFERBEFERAZEEET
HREE(BE) RERHE

The following are the major deferred tax assets (liabilities) recognised and

movements thereon during the current and prior years:

R-Z—hFEA—H

KRz (F0RR)FEA

READ 2 E A R
(BHzE15)

Rk

RZZE_ZEF=RA=1+—H

g EdanB il |G

RE M2 E A R R
(Hia£15)

& 5 A

R=B=-—F=A=+—H

RIEHTER
ZERERE ¢
Temporary FEEF
Ef¥#%¥  difference Unrealised
Revaluation from tax profit on et
of properties depreciation inventories Total
THET TET FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
At Ist April, 2019 (10,761) 1,334 3,205 (6,222)
(Charged) credited to profit or loss (513) 822 (344) (35)
Charged to other comprehensive
income (note 15) (1,082) - - (1,082)
Exchange realignment 476 - - 476
At 31st March, 2020 (11,880) 2,156 2,861 (6,863)
Charged to profit or loss (138) (1,680) (2,861) (4,679)
Charged to other comprehensive
income (note 15) (385) - - (385)
Exchange realignment (797) - - (797)
At 31st March, 2021 (13,200) 476 - (12,724)
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Raw materials
Work in progress
Finished goods

Trade receivables

Less: allowance for expected credit losses

Other receivables (Note)
Prepayment

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed on dividends declared
in respect of profits earned by the PRC subsidiaries from 1st January, 2008
onwards. Deferred tax has not been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of temporary differences attributable to undistributed and
accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to HK$62,312,000 (2020:
HK$59,296,000) as the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary differences will not

2021 2020
FHET FAET
HK$’000 HK$°000
3,679 5,816
8,089 8,014
183,388 342,184
195,156 356,014
2021 2020
FHERT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
10,867 14,095
(5,461) (3,995)
5,406 10,100
6,269 5,352
5,301 10,075
16,976 25,527

Wiet - ZEeEREINT—HBEQAZ Note: The amount included rental prepayment and rental deposit paid to a related

& 78 38 R &2 £ 400,000
TL(ZZ=FF : 718,000/ 7T) * H

BARRIEERRERHEE - A4 repayable on demand.
BEARE  WAREXER -

company of HK$400,000 (2020: HK$718,000), which is beneficially owned by
the substantial shareholder of the Company. The balance is interest-free and



REBBEMREE R R A S B E K
RIBATI0EECOR 2ZEH : M4 Tt
BEFZEEHNT60AE1208 o AT
BRARESR - REZAH2Y| 2 EK
BHRIBLZRE DT ¢

The Group allows 30 to 60 days credit period for receivables from department
stores in which sales counters are located and a credit period of 60 to 120 days to
its wholesale customers. The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables

presented based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period:

2021 2020

FHET TET

HK$°000 HK$°000

30HA Within 30 days 3,223 3,150
31—60H 31 — 60 days 85 973
61—90H 61 — 90 days 727 3,001
91—120H 91 — 120 days 347 204
#1208 Over 120 days 1,024 2,772
5,406 10,100

REBREMEAFUHEZTLA - &5EH
ERFZAEEELHE  UHEERF
ZEEMRR - XRATERFPZEEREE - KN
SEeRFEECERIFATEZEFPEH
ERHE  UEHERRTEPZEER
o

R-BE-—F=A=+—8 K&EERE
WEB SR ERBTIRESFEHBEATA
1,024,000/ 7 (=T =T F : 2,772,000
TOMEERNREED AN - AHGKRED
B0 H A E I A RTE BEL © RIR
B4 Be R ASET R BTHE B R - AN ARE
RN EZEB IR °

At - AEBEEEBEERRANR_T=_—F
A=+ HEKESRENBEHEE
BB B 325,461,000 T ( — T =T 4F -
3,995,000/ 7T ) ° AN & B0 ph 5% SRR ER
R EAER o

FEUE 5 3R B A R UL R BB E RT A
BRI EE35(b)

Before accepting any new wholesale customers, the Group assesses the potential
customer’s credit quality by investigating their historical credit record and defines
credit limits by customer. Credit sales are made to customers with a satisfactory
and trustworthy credit history. Credit limits attributed to customers are reviewed
regularly.

As at 31st March, 2021, included in the Group’s trade receivables balances are
debtors with aggregate carrying amount of HK$1,024,000 (2020: HK$2,772,000)
which are past due as at the reporting date. The balances past due 90 days or more
are not considered as in default. The directors of the Company consider that the
recoverability of these debts are high based on historical experience and taking into
consideration of forward-looking information.

Accordingly, the management of the Group has recognised an allowance for
expected credit losses of trade receivables as at 31st March, 2021 of HK$5,461,000
(2020: HK$3,995,000). The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other receivables are set out in note
35(b).
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22. RITHER  ERERE 22. Bank Balances, Deposits and Cash

NEB ZRITELRTFIIEBITHEITER The Group’s bank balances and deposits carry interest at prevailing bank deposits

FFENT0.001%FE03%( =T =FF : rates ranging from 0.001% to 0.3% (2020: 0.001% to 0.3%) per annum and have an

0.001%%0.3% )5t 2 RETHR A =18 A original maturity of three months or less.
AR ©
23. ERNEBEZFEEEME 23. Trade and Other Payables
NRE

2021 2020

FHERT FET

HK$°000 HK$’000

B8 S3E Trade payables 7,866 20,257

fEsT & Accrued expenses 29,935 29.136

H b pE S FOR Other payables 17,034 11,731

H R IE Other taxes payables 443 291

55,278 61,415

UTERMBHREBNMARNESHIE  The following is the analysis of the trade and other payables balances for financial

N E M FRIBAEERH AT reporting purposes:
2021 2020
FHT FHET
HK$’000 HK$°000
RED Current 52,736 61,415
B Non-current 2,542 _
55,278 61,415
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23, ENESRERAEMME
RRE(E)

R-B-—F=A=+—H0 K&EEZ
FE 1~ B 5 3R I8 & H A FE A4 518 B 45 FE
H 5 5 IE 7,866,000/ L (Z T =T F ¢
20,257,000 7T ) & & %) & & 827,000 7T
(ZZE =4 : 740,000/ 7T) - RAIREH
RIRBEZAME 2 BN E SHIEZ
BROMEEBWT -

For the year ended 31st March, 2021
23. Trade and Other Payables (Continued)

At 31st March, 2021, included in the Group’s trade and other payables were trade
payables of HK$7,866,000 (2020: HK$20,257,000) and contract liabilities of
HK$827,000 (2020: HK$740,000). Details of the aged analysis of trade payables
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:

2021 2020
FHERT FAxT
HK$°000 HK$’000
3080 A Within 30 days 2,421 8,454
31 -60H 31 - 60 days 2,682 6,800
61 -90H 61 — 90 days 632 3,178
#90H Over 90 days 2,131 1,825
7,866 20,257

24. HEARRITEE 24. Secured Bank Borrowings
2021 2020
FERT FAET
HK$°000 HK$’000
WITER Bank loans 361,571 358,014
EOER Import loans 27,923 62,045
389,494 420,059

129

colourmixey MoriMor O  VECK)  Wanko 2021 £ 3R




VEEKO INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

e EmR BN
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEe—_Z - —9F=-—A=1+—HLFE For the year ended 31st March, 2021
24. BHEARTEEE) 24. Secured Bank Borrowings (Continued)
BEMRTEEERTIIEER : The secured bank borrowings are repayable as follows:
2021 2020
FTHERT FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
JEEEEE ZRmE Carrying amounts repayable*:
—FR Within one year 325,987 342,416
F_F In the second year 15,486 14,728
E=ZFRF(AEERWE) In the third to fifth year inclusive 25,715 38,794
AFEMNUE More than five years 22,306 24,121
389,494 420,059
BRTEE 2 D1 Analysis of carrying amounts:
MEBEEE TR —FREE Amounts due within one year shown
(RERBERERZER)Z under current liabilities and contain a
o] repayment on demand clause 325,987 342,416
TERREBRET—FR Carrying amount of bank loans that are not
EBRZBTER(ESRERK repayable within one year from the end
BRZIEF) 2 BREE of the reporting period but contain a
(AttBERARBAR) repayment on demand clause hence
shown as current liabilities 63,507 77,643
389,494 420,059
o B EBIAER BHAERE  * The amounts due are based on the scheduled repayment dates set out in the
BRBEBREE - loan agreements.
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 E_T - F=ZA=1+—HALFE

24, FEARTEEE)

REBZIEETEHFREE  REETF
M (BRETAF EARR ) M F1.38%%E4.04%
(ZZE=FF : 1.50%%4.75% )t B °

BITEEUAREEE TEEAKE (W
28) ©

REE-Z-_TF=A=+—HILEFE
A AEBE B A —ERTIREHEE ST
BEREHR Y2 EBHRY - ZERNE
EUERBASBNEEFRERE—EKX
FeoBEZT—F=A=+—HRILE
ZEREMBRERBA AL - NEEWE
B RAERZA -

For the year ended 31st March, 2021
24. Secured Bank Borrowings (Continued)

The Group’s borrowings are floating-rate borrowings which carry interest at
effective interest rates (which are also equal to contracted interest rates) ranging
from 1.38% to 4.04% (2020: 1.50% to 4.75%) per annum.

The bank borrowings are secured by certain assets of the Group (note 28).

During the year ended 31st March, 2020, the Group has obtained waiver from
compliance with the loan covenants as set out in the borrowing arrangements from
a bank. Such covenants primarily related to maintaining the net worth of the Group
at a certain level. As at 31st March, 2021 and up to the date of approval of these
consolidated financial statements, the Group has not breached any covenants.
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25. HEAE 25. Lease Liabilities
2021 2020
FHERT FAxT
HK$°000 HK$’000
ENAHERRE : Lease liabilities payable:
—ER Within one year 114,939 158,974
BB —FETBAMEZ Within a period of more than one year
HAE A but not more than two years 36,916 87,320
HBARFANETBBRF 2 Within a period of more than two years
BRI A but not more than five years 3,461 29,139
155,316 275,433
BWoomBBERNA AT ZMEARN  Less: Amount due for settlement with 12 months
DI HA 4% & Hy X8 shown under current liabilities (114,939) (158,974)
FEnBBEENTAT @A %ZE/H Amount due for settlement after 12 months
EE R IE shown under non-current liabilities 40,377 116,459

EANREES B INETIIEEERFRN  The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied to lease liabilities range
ENF2.18%%4.85%(ZF=FF :3.75%  from 2.18% to 4.85% (2020: 3.75% to 4.85%) per annum.
£4.85%) o

LB EEER 2 EBLAINZ E%ET Lease obligations that are denominated in currencies other than the functional

EHHEEAEHIIMT currencies of the relevant group entities are set out below:
2021 2020
FEx FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
T HKS$ 18,309 28,172
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26. RRA

& Ak (B E{E.0187T)

VAT ¢
RZZF—NAFWEA—AB
—ECTFERE—F
=A=+—8H

EEITRAR
RZT—hFMA—H
T TFRZIT—F

=R=+—H

27. RERERH
AEEEREHEA

For the year ended 31st March, 2021
26. Share Capital

EERHE BE
Number of
ordinary shares Value
FET
HK$’000
Ordinary shares at HK$0.01 each
Authorised:
At 1st April, 2019,
31st March, 2020 and 2021
10,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid:
At 1st April, 2019, 31st March, 2020
and 2021
2,518,001,334 25,180

27. Operating Leasing Arrangements

The Group as lessor

RAFERNBRBMZzOER KA B
5,631,000/ 70 (Z T =T : 7,471,000
TL) c FTBBZYEHAERRERENT
MEAZREH(ZE_ZF : MAAE
RE)ZHP -

Property rental income earned during the year was HK$5,631,000 (2020:
HK$7,471,000). All of the properties held have committed tenants with terms that
ranged from two months to five years (2020: two months to five years).

MEEZ RFHEEEEFIRNT

Undiscounted lease payments receivable on leases are as follows:

2021 2020

FET FET

HK$’000 HKS$’000

—FRA Within one year 4,903 4,994
F-F In the second year 4,635 1,744
F=F In the third year 1,562 1,586
Eufes In the fourth year 82 372
ERF In the fifth year - 22
11,182 8,718
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RARER - AEEERTETRITN
BB TFAEEN—MRRITRIE RHEHE
EWT :

At the end of the reporting period, the following assets were pledged by the Group
to certain banks to secure general banking facilities granted to the Group:

2021 2020

FHER FHET

HK$°000 HK$’000

REYE Investment properties 338,349 306,113
AE L RET Leasehold land and buildings 87,178 129,353
EREEE Right-of-use assets 3,912 3,894
429,439 439,360

RBEARARZE—=F N\ =1+THE17T
ZBERAFARE LRB 2 ERRER - AN
REFEM—BEBREA (53] - BH
AeEERSEEREKS - URESARF
ZEEER  URE2EERETARQA]
REBRHZBENS N  BEARRALE
BRREEXE - ARAEFTZ2RBIBR
RERIEEHAREFLER 2288
= 2REEMEMEMATHFTEER

IRIRET B3k AN A RIER AR 2 (o] H At B8 AR 4
FT &l - BITEATIR 2 FT A B AR 4 1 31T
IR - TFEBAREMA R AR RE %
1TR& 1 2. 10% °

AR A FERR R BEfE T AT B ET L 10% P8R 1
MEFIRE AT BBANREEZ AR
REEBEITRD Z10% °

IRIRET I 2N A Bl ER AN 2 (] B h B AR A
FTEl - BT RAEITEMRE Z A mAR
TR EMEITHRMDEE - TEHRA
TR E BRI 230% °

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the annual general meeting of the
Company on 30th August, 2013, a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was
adopted by the Company for the purpose of providing eligible participants with
the opportunity to acquire proprietary interests in the Company and to encourage
participants to work towards enhancing the value of the Company and its shares
for the benefit of the Company and its shareholders as a whole. All directors, full-
time employees and any other persons who, in the sole discretion of the board of
directors of the Company, have contributed or will contribute to the Group are
eligible to participate in the Scheme.

Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under
the Scheme or any other share option scheme adopted by the Company must not
in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue on the date of
adoption.

The Company may renew this 10% limit with shareholders’ approval provided that
each such renewal may not exceed 10% of the shares in the Company in issue as at
the date of the shareholders’ approval.

The total number of shares of the Company which may be issued upon exercise of
all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme or any
other share option scheme adopted by the Company must not exceed 30% of the
shares in issue from time to time.



BROEERS AN R B BCR AL A - BRI E M
TEAHREA - REF B HAR R
ZIEMEMLBERERSE  RTEAS2
BRE PR 2 B ARHE (BIFE 1T R s R
TTEREICE ) 1 31T Mofs T AT (D 48
B TNMEEBARFEETRMZ1% -

B ZTEME R R AR RRER L RS
E - R HBRAASERBRER L B MR
THEEREm - RIRHBRER - AAFH
BEATRAARABREZREMR -
ROBREZZOANAZSEEZ LR
BEZEHR RSB -+ — B REK
B MREABBER AN UET -

TR AR R S T 31T 2 A A R R
BE TREXRTI=EZ&8SE : ORN
EHNRH - RARRMRBRAEL 2 &
BERZBDKRTE  ()EERZHEH
A LB A B AR R0 TR B A2 A 8 2
FRBERZEMD FHRTE K)o
EHNRRAZARARBMEE - NRARES
SR2EERHERERETEREE -

ERMT 8% 2 B BRAR T TR
O O

MR-TB-—F=A=+—0 - ERET2
B A MARITEZERESRREZKMD
H B A X 545,220,000 (Z T =FF :
19,080,000/%) * (AN A R E A B /TR
21.8%(—FE -4 : 08%) °

RAEFER - NA R ERER &R A
RAEERHERGE -

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company, the total number of shares of the
Company issued and to be issued upon the exercise of the options granted to each
participant (including both exercised and unexercised options) under the Scheme
or any other share option scheme adopted by the Company in any 12-month period

must not exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue.

The period within which the options must be exercised will be specified by the
Company at the time of grant. This period must expire no later than 10 years from
the date of grant of the options. At the time of grant of the options, the Company
may specify a minimum period for which an option must be held before it can be
exercised. The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 21 days
from the date on which the letter containing the offer is delivered to that participant

and the amount payable on acceptance of an option is HK$1.

The subscription price for the shares of the Company to be issued upon exercise of
the options shall be no less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares of
the Company as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange
on the date of offer; (ii) the average closing price of the shares of the Company
as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the nominal
value of a share of the Company on the date of offer. The subscription price will
be established by the board of directors of the Company at the time the option is
offered to the participants.

No options may be granted under the Scheme after the date of the tenth anniversary
of the adoption of the scheme.

At 31st March, 2021, the number of shares in respect of which options had been
granted and remained outstanding under the Scheme in aggregate was 45,220,000
(2020: 19,080,000), representing 1.8% (2020: 0.8%) of the shares of the Company

in issue at that date.

No options were granted to the directors of the Company during both years under
the Scheme.



TREEAEEE

BAFRIEFT IR Z

BREFE RSB E

REZE—

RitBH
Date of grant

“F-Z#1A+H
Tth October, 2013

“5-MEMA-THA
25th April, 2014

“F-tE-ANA
9th January, 2017

“F-tE-ANA
9th January, 2017

“2—F-A-AR
(Hita)

29th January, 2021
(Note a)

“E--%-A-TNR
(Hiztb)

29th January, 2021
(Note b)

ARERIR
Exercisable at the end of
the year

MEFATRE
Weighted average
exercise price

His -
@

i

S

T e

®  SEH
JC °

i

—F=R=+—HIFEAN :

EE L
Vesting period

“F-—=F1tRtAZE
“Z-\¥1AA
Tth October, 2013 to
6th October, 2018

“S-MEmA-THAZ
“E-NEMA-TEA
25th April, 2014 to
24th April, 2019

T E-AAAE
“2_EE-ANH
9th January, 2017 to
8th January, 2020

ZE—tE-ANRE
“2-25-ANR
9th January, 2017 to
8th January, 2022

ZE--E-A-TNRZ
ZEZME-AZT)\R
29th January, 2021 to
28th January, 2024

B E-ACThEE
“2- 5 F-AZ1\H
29th January, 2021 to
28th January, 2026

B IR R il AT A BB A0.012

iR H5t A F{EEA0.015

The following tables disclose details of options granted under the Scheme held by

employees of the Group and movements in such holdings.

During the year ended 31st March, 2021:

RZB-%% REER REER RZ%F=-%
) BA-A R %% ZA=t-H
) SRTEE &8 Granted Lapsed WA
TRHE Exerciseprice  Balanceat during during  Outstanding
Exercise period per share 1.4.2020 the year the year at 31.3.2021
“E-\ETRtRZE 022507 12,160,000 - (12160,000) -
ZEZTETARA HK$0.2250
Tth October, 2018 to
6th October, 2020
“Z-N\ENA-THAZ 0300057 1,920,000 - (300,000) 1,620,000
= Sy i HK$0.3000
25th April, 2019 to
24th April, 2021
“ZCRE-ANRE 0.1832% 2,500,000 - - 2,500,000
“Z--%#-A)\R HKS0.1832
9th January, 2020 to
8th January, 2022
“E-CE-ANBE 0.183257 2,500,000 - - 2,500,000
“TME-ANR HKS0.1832
9th January, 2022 to
8th January, 2024
R=thAZ 005347870 - 19,300,000 - 19,300,000
:;‘ﬂﬁ A=tNR HK$0.0534
29th January, 2024 to
28th January, 2026
:;_K R=thBZz 005347870 - 19,300,000 - 19,300,000
Ai A=tNR HK$0.0534
29ih January, 2026 to
28th Janvary, 2028
19,080,000 38,600,000 (12,460,000) 45,220,000
4,120,000
0.2216 0.0534 0.2268 0.0766
Notes:
(a) The estimated fair value per option is HK$0.012.
(b) The estimated fair value per option is HK$0.015.



REBEE-_T-_TF=-A=+—HIIFERN :

REAH
Date of grant

—Z-=FtAtH
7th October, 2013

“Z-NEMA=tRA
25th April, 2014

—T-MEMA-+EA
25th April, 2014

“Z—+t%-ANA
9th January, 2017

—2—t£-ANR
9th January, 2017

ARERITHE
Exercisable at the end
of the year

IEFHTEE
Weighted average
exercise price

BE_Z-—F=A=t+—HIEFEA "
WimEREETE( =T =

fTREAREH
Vesting period

“2-=%1+AtHE
“E-\%Et+A~AH

Tth October, 2013 to
6th October, 2018

“T-NENA-TRHEE
“E—+FNA=+MA
25th April, 2014 to
24th April, 2017

“T-NENA-TREE
ZE-NEMA=TEA
25th April, 2014 to
24th April, 2019

—Z+E-ANEE
—Z_Z5-ANR

9th January, 2017 to
8th January, 2020

—Z+tE-ANEE
“F__£-ANR

9th January, 2017 to
8th January, 2022

M

Exercise period

“2-\#(1+AtHE
ZZZZE+AAA

Tth October, 2018 to
6th October, 2020

“ZtENAZtRAZ
“E-NENAZTmA
25th April, 2017 to
24th April, 2019

“T-NFNA-TRAZE
ZEZ-¥PNA=TEA
25th April, 2019 to
24th April, 2021

“Z-ZE-AARE
ZE-ZF-ANA

9th January, 2020 to
8th January, 2022

9th January, 2022 to
8th January, 2024

During the year ended 31st March, 2020:

BRTEE
Exercise price
per share

0.2250/87T
HK$0.2250

0.300078 7
HK$0.3000

0.300078 7
HK$0.3000

0.183287C
HKS$0.1832

0.183278 7T
HKS$0.1832

R=Z-n% R=B=%%
MA-H REER =ZA=t-H
LR P34 I RATHE
Balance at Lapsed  Outstanding
1.4.2019 during the year at 31.3.2020
12,160,000 - 12,160,000
1,920,000 (1,920,000) -
1,920,000 - 1,920,000
2,500,000 - 2,500,000
2,500,000 - 2,500,000
21,000,000 (1,920,000) 19,080,000
16,580,000

0.2288 0.3000 0.2216

No share options were exercised during the year ended 31st March, 2021 (2020:
T ) - Nil).
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Annual Report 2021

For the year ended 31st March, 2021

29. Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The fair values of the share options granted on 29th January, 2021 were calculated
using the Black-Scholes option pricing model (the “Black-Scholes Model”) with
the following inputs:

Number of options granted 38,600,000
Share price HK$0.05007% 7T
Exercise price HK$0.0534/8 7T
Expected volatility 37.61% — 42.50%
Expected life 5 -7 years4F
Risk-free rate 0.353%
Expected dividend yield 2.564%

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility of the
Company’s share price over past 5 to 7 years up to valuation date.

The variables and assumptions used in computing the fair value of the share
options are based on the directors’ best estimate. The value of an option varies with
different variables of certain subjective assumptions.

The Group recognised the total expense of HK$59,000 for the year ended 31st
March, 2021 (2020: HK$51,000) in relation to the vesting of share options granted
by the Company.
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RAFERN - AEEERR ST

SATRARS
B%
Relationships

EARRAEERHINE R
Entity controlled by a director of
the Company*

ZERHAARRMITESTHEX
SEAERE] ©

RAFEERN EFREMBERZEERARZ
FENm T

SRR
B &ER
VAR D 73 20t 2 (B

EERTEEEAB ZEMKE ZHBTS
B E B SR T ERIRIR LT SEE M
MEFSRHESR

The Group operates the Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) scheme for qualifying
employees of the Company and its subsidiaries in Hong Kong. The assets of the
MPF scheme are held separately from those of the Group in funds under the control
of trustees. The Group contributes at the lower of HK$1,500 or 5% of relevant
payroll costs to the MPF scheme, which contribution is matched by employees.

The Company’s subsidiaries operating in the PRC are also required to make
contributions to state-managed retirement benefit schemes in the PRC. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute a specific percentage of the monthly basic
salaries of the employees to the relevant schemes to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to these pension schemes is to make the
specified contributions.

The total expense recognised in profit or loss of HK$6,107,000 (2020:
HK$9,786,000) represents contributions payable to these plans by the Group at
rates specified in the rules of plan.

During the year, the Group entered into the following transaction with a
related party:

2021 2020
FHET TR
HK$°000 HK$’000
ReEHE
Nature of transactions
BRAEMEE 2
Expenses relating to short-term leases
2,001 782
& The entity is controlled by Mr. Cheng Chung Man, Johnny, an executive

director of the Company.

The remuneration of directors and other members of key management during the
year was as follows:

2021 2020

FHERT THET

HK$’000 HK$’000

Short-term benefits 4,232 4,497
Post-employment benefits 100 98
Share-based payments 12 16
4,344 4,611

The remuneration of directors and other members of key management is
recommended to the board of directors by the remuneration committee having
regard to the performance of individuals and market trends.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2021
32. Statement of Financial Position of the Company

2021 2020
FB b
HK$’°000 HKS$’000
Non-current Asset
Interests in subsidiaries 53,631 132,012
Current Assets
Other receivables 328 327
Amounts due from subsidiaries 337,468 410,141
Bank balances and cash 421 218
338,217 410,686
Current Liabilities
Other payables 944 883
Amounts due to subsidiaries 222,060 224,715
Secured bank borrowings - 12,500
223,004 238,098
Net Current Assets 115,213 172,588
168,844 304,600
Capital and Reserves
Share capital 25,180 25,180
Reserves (Note) 143,664 279,420
168,844 304,600
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HE-Z-—F=A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st March, 2021
32. AP TEBRRAE(E) 32. Statement of Financial Position of the Company
(Continued)

Hiat - Note:
RERF
(REER)
Retained
B EE AR BRERE profits
Share  Contributed  Share option (accumulated o
premium surplus reserve loss) Total
THRT THET FAT FET FET
HKS$000 HKS$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$’000
RZZE-NFNA—H At 1st April, 2019 223,654 53,135 1,254 6,663 284,706
AEEBERE2EMY  Loss and total comprehensive
expense for the year - = = (2,667) (2,667)
BRBALEE 2 AR Recognition of equity-settled
RERZEMN share-based payments = = 51 - 51
BRBZ R Share options lapsed = = (152) - (152)
HRAN KIS (Hf#13) Dividends recognised as
distribution (note 13) - - - (2,518) (2,518)
RZTZTF=A=+—H At 31st March, 2020 223,654 53,135 1,153 1,478 279,420
AEEBERE2EASY  Loss and total comprehensive
expense for the year - - - (134,986) (134,986)
R LEE 2 AR R Recognition of equity-settled
RERZEMN share-based payments - - 59 - 59
BRI BlE Share options lapsed - - (829) - (829)
W=®=—£=A=+-H8 At3lst March, 2021 223,654 53,135 383 (133,508) 143,664

141
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ARNAR_TE-_—FR-_FT_FTF=A Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company as at 31st March, 2021 and
ST —HENEEWBERANFBENT 2020 were as follow:

ARRMER
BRITRE/
A E A E LA
ERTREAR Proportion of nominal
R EE B/ ERER value of issued share
Place of Issued and capital/registered capital
incorporation/ fully paid held by the Company
- NGRS establishment/ share capital/ (Hizta) TEER
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital (Note a) Principal activities
2021 2020
RERE S RBERRF BE 1,000,000/ 7 100% 100% fttrmKERERTE
Colourmix Cosmetics Company Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 Retailing of cosmetics &
skin care products
Colourmix Cosmetics Retail Company & 100,000t 100% 100% ftfmRkEERTE
Limited Hong Kong HK$100,000 Retailing of cosmetics &
skin care products
Colourmix International Holdings Limited ~ &% 10,0007 ¢ 100% 100% B
Hong Kong HK$10,000 Property holding
WEERmERRERRAR (M) H 20,000,000 7T 100% 100% fkFBhE
Shantou Huanan Digao Fashion Company ~ PRC HK$20,000,000 Manufacturing of garments
Limited (Note b)
WEER= AREA R A Rl (H/72b ) (Note b) e 28,350,000/ 7T 100% 100% ARKRTE ki3
PRC HK$28,350,000 Retailing and wholesaling
of garments
WEBEREBRAR (Hits) EP 36,000,000/ 7T 100% 100% PRELERFH DS
Shantou Yungao Fashion Company PRC HK$36,000,000 Manufacturing of garments
Limited (Note b) & property holding
ARRRERAR BB 2,400,000/ 7T 100% 100% MKZE

Veeko Fashion Company Limited Hong Kong HK$2,400,000 Retailing of garments



LN ViiEs2 )

BRTRE/
A E A {E LA
ERTRAR Proportion of nominal
TR E B/ EMER value of issued share
Place of Issued and capital/registered capital
incorporation/ fully paid held by the Company
HEATLE establishment/ share capital/ (Hiita) TEXH
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital (Note a) Principal activities
2021 2020
Veeko Holdings Limited RRELEE/BA 618.565 7T 100% 100% &R
BVI/Hong Kong US$618.56 Investment holding
Wina Success Limited ) 100/7T 100% 100% #HEYE
Hong Kong HK$100 Property holding

Bt - Notes:

a. N A 7] B % #5 B Veeko Holdings a. The Company directly holds the interest in Veeko Holdings Limited. All other
Limited ) #%3 © EXFTRPIA Efth interests shown above are indirectly held by the Company.
EEBARNRIEERS -

b. ZENTAREEEIIEGIRE % b. The companies are registered in the form of wholly foreign owned enterprises.

Z R A EES -

B BB A R B TR B AR P A AT R PR
EfA AR EENERES

ERIHEEBRANEFATERELRE
BXREINFREBNAEEARLIEE
SAEZMBAT - EFERBIIHEAMN
BRRZFIFESEMNBRITE

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at the end of the year
or at any time during the year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of the
directors, principally affected the results of the Group for the year or formed a
substantial portion of the assets or liabilities of the Group at the end of the year.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.



AEBEEBHEERNURKRANEE 2 AR
ARERE  WEBEBEBRERER
RBRRGERZAOE - BREFE - K&

B2 BB RS M & o
$¢%2§$ RRBIERES  EeER
4B o B BIRITEE mnﬁ

ERASEERE RARAHEES ARG E
a7 HeBe BITRA R

ARAEEEHEHEARE - (FRULE
Blz—3R EFZEEARRAREELE
;éTZMEﬁﬁZH @ REBBRIEEE 22
B BERERITIEENRIHIERIA KR
BB R HEA I AN KB M IR A B RS A & E
BREARE -

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to
continue as a going concern while maximising the return to stakeholders through
the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which includes secured
bank borrowings disclosed in note 24, net of cash and cash equivalents and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital and

reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a regular basis. As
part of this review, the directors consider the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the directors, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through monitoring the maturity of bank
borrowings as well as the increase of banking facilities or redemption of existing
debt.

2021 2020
FHExT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
SREE Financial assets
TSN W Amortised cost 113,769 113,756
SREE Financial liabilities
B SHA AR Amortised cost 405,885 453,550
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The Group’s financial instruments include trade and other receivables,
rental and utility deposits paid, bank balances, deposits and cash, trade
and other payables, rental and utility deposits received, secured bank
borrowings and lease liabilities. Details of the financial instruments are
disclosed in the respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (represented by currency risk and interest
rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. Management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

Market risk
(1) Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign currency purchases and
secured bank borrowings, which expose the Group to foreign currency risk.
In addition, group entities are exposed to foreign currency risk attributable
to intra-group receivables and payables where the denomination of the
receivables and payables is in currencies other than the functional currency
of the relevant group entities. The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy. However, the management closely monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.

The Group’s currency risk is mainly attributable to the exposure
outstanding on bank balances and deposits, receivables, payables, bank
borrowings and intra-group receivables and payables denominated in RMB,
HKS, USD and EUR. The carrying amounts at the end of the reporting
period are as follows:

BE =R

Assets Liabilities
2021 2020 2021 2020
FHET FET FHERT TET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
278 114 111 249
46,763 14,833 18,480 28,182
9,724 3,660 5,063 5,639

- - 3,086 4,804
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Impact on loss for the year

Market risk (Continued)
(1) Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

As HKS is pegged to USD, the Group does not expect any significant movements
in the USD/HKS$ exchange rate. In this regard, the Group does not expose to
significant currency risk arising from USD.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5% (2020: 5%) increase and
decrease in the functional currency of each group entity against the relevant foreign
currency. 5% (2020: 5%) represents management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes the
Group’s outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items, intra-group
receivables and payables where the denomination of the receivables and payables
is in currencies other than the functional currency of the relevant group entities
and adjusts their translation at the year end for a 5% (2020: 5%) increase in foreign
currency rates. A positive (negative) number below indicates decrease (increase)
in post-tax loss for the year where the functional currency of each group entity
strengthens 5% (2020: 5%) against the relevant foreign currency. For a 5% (2020:
5%) weakening of functional currency of each group entity against the relevant
currency, there would be an equal and opposite impact on the post-tax loss.

ARMZRE Brz¥E Bnz%8

RMB impact HKS$ impact EUR impact
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
TR TR TER TR TR THT
HK$°000 HKS$’000 HK$°000 HKS$’000 HK$°000 HKS$°000
(7) 6 (1,181) 581 129 381
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Market risk (Continued)
(i1) Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to fixed-rate lease
liabilities (note 25). In addition, the Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to variable-rate short-term bank balances and deposits (note 22) and
secured bank borrowings (note 24). It is the Group’s policy to keep its borrowings
at floating rate of interests so as to minimise the fair value interest rate risk. The
exposure to the interest rate risk for variable-rate bank balances and deposits is

insignificant.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial liabilities are detailed in the
liquidity risk management section of this note. The Group’s cash flow interest rate
risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of HIBOR and LIBOR arising from

the Group’s bank borrowings.

The Group currently does not have any interest rate hedging policy in relation to
fair value and cash flow interest rate risks. However, management monitors interest
rate exposure on ongoing basis and will consider hedging significant interest rate
risk should the need arise.
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Market risk (Continued)

(i1) Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure to
interest rates of bank borrowings. The analysis is prepared assuming the amount
of liability outstanding at the end of the reporting period was outstanding for
the whole year. A 50 (2020: 50) basis point increase or decrease represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 (2020: 50) basis point higher/lower and all other
variables were held constant, the Group’s post-tax loss for the year ended 31st
March, 2021 would increase (decrease) by HK$1,626,000 (2020: HK$1,754,000).

Credit risk and impairment assessment

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to
the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is arising
from the carrying amount of the respective recognised financial assets as stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements to cover its credit risks associated with its
financial assets.

The Group performed impairment assessment for financial assets under the
ECL model. Information about the Group’s credit risk management, maximum
credit risk exposures and the related impairment assessment, if applicable, are
summarised below:

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group has delegated
a team responsible for determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group performs impairment assessment under ECL model
on trade receivables individually for debtors. The estimated loss rates are estimated
based on historical observed default rates over the expected lives of the debtors
and are adjusted for forward-looking information, including but not limited to
expected growth rate of the industry that is available without undue cost or effort.
In this regard, the directors of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical locations is mainly in the
PRC and Hong Kong.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2021
35. Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b). Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The credit risks on bank balances and deposits are limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit-
rating agencies.

Other than the concentration of credit risk on liquid funds which are deposited with
several banks with good reputation and high credit ratings, the Group does not
have any other significant concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread over a
number of counterparties and customers.

The Group has considered that credit risk on other receivables, rental and utility
deposits paid, bank balances and deposits has not increased significantly since
initial recognition and has assessed the ECL rate under 12m ECL method based on
the Group’s assessment in the risk of default of the respective counterparties.

2021 5§

BEBERZERBRAL A

149



1= EE e R EHE (&) Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

AEBRREEER BT RO EEIENA The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment comprises the following
TR : categories:

EYl P W E 5 5E Hitt & MEE
Category Description Trade receivables Other financial assets
iV HAMELRRBE - B EEREEHRIE EHBEHEERE - T EAEMEEER
I A5 EORE
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and Lifetime ECL — 12m ECL
does not have any past-due amounts not credit-impaired
BReE B ANEE R B E% B ES EHBEHEERE - + A A BREERE
I A5 SRR
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due dates but  Lifetime ECL — 12m ECL
usually settles in full after due date not credit-impaired
7 &R FERBRBEZEADZINERSIINDERNGE ZHRAEEHE - T HEHAEEER -
AR ANEIE AN I A= SRR I A5 SRR
Doubtful There has been a significant increase in Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —
credit risk since initial recognition through not credit-impaired not credit-impaired

information developed internally or

external resources

&1 FRBERATEECDEERE EHBEHEERE - EHBEHEERE -
EfEERE EfEERE
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —
credit-impaired credit-impaired credit-impaired
ks BRBRATEBARNRRYBNE - BARSE  FIAE MEH TRIR B M
3 48 B R e O ) 7T B
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is Amount is written off Amount is written off

in severe financial difficulty and the Group
has no realistic prospect of recovery
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BEe—Z2 - —%=-fA=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st March, 2021
35. &@@mITA(E 35. Financial Instruments (Continued)
b). BHEEREEBZKRE (b). Financial risk management objectives and policies
E(/E) (Continued)
EEER R EF L (E) Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
TR AEFRBESTEREEBETG The table below details the credit risk exposures of the Group’s financial assets,
HWeREAEFMRRZZERE : which are subject to ECL assessment:
+T=@EA% —E--F —E-EF
SIS BT RIS ETR 2HEHEERE BEREE HEREE
2021 2020
Ffit External Internal credit 12-month or Gross carrying Gross carrying
Notes  credit rating  rating lifetime ECL amount amount
THER FET
HK$°000 HKS$°000
B E 5508 21 EA BT 2 HEHEEEE 5,406 10,100
—WEEERE
Trade receivables N/A Note i Lifetime ECL —
not credit-impaired
B E 5508 21 EA BT 2 HEHEEEE 5,461 3,995
—EfEERE
Trade receivables N/A Note i Lifetime ECL —
credit-impaired
Hoth FE U IE 21 EA izt TEABBEEEE 877 1,041
Other receivables N/A Note ii 12m ECL
RITEERRIFR 22 Aa3EAIL izt TEABBEEEE 45,513 24,847
Bank balances and deposits Aa3 to Al Note ii 12m ECL
BN RKELRS TEA  TER izt TEABBEEEE 60,372 76,139
Rental and utility deposits paid N/A  N/A Note ii 12m ECL
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Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Notes:

For trade receivables, the Group has applied the simplified approach in HKFRS
9 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. The Group determines the ECL
for trade debtors based on individual assessment. As at 31st March, 2021, the
Group considers that allowance for ECL for trade receivables is amounted to
HK$5,461,000 (2020: HK$3,995,000).

For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the Group has applied the
general approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at 12m ECL as
there is no significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. The Group
determines the ECL for other receivables, bank balances and deposits, and rental
and utility deposits paid by assessment of probability of default. During the
year ended 31st March, 2021 and 2020, in view of the nature of these balances,
historical settlement record and good reputations of the counterparties, the
Group considers the provision of impairment allowance for other receivables,
bank balances and deposits, and rental and utility deposits paid is insignificant.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2021
35. Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b). Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The following table provides information about the exposure to credit risk for trade
receivables which are assessed individually as at 31st March, 2021 within lifetime
ECL (not credit impaired). Debtors with credit-impaired with gross carrying
amount of HK$5,461,000 as at 31st March, 2021 (2020: HK$3,995,000) were
assessed individually.

Gross carrying amount

FHBEER EWE S HE
Average Trade
At 31st March, 2021 loss rate receivables
FHET
HK$°000

Internal credit rating
Low risk # 3,041
Watch list # 2,365
5,406
T EE =R e E 55008
Average Trade
At 31st March, 2020 loss rate receivables
FHT
HK$’000

Internal credit rating
Low risk # 6,168
Watch list # 3,932
10,100

# The percentage was lower than 0.1%

colourmixey MoriMor O  VECK)  Wanko 2021 £ 3R
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Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Gross carrying amount (Continued)

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the trade receivables within low
risk and watch list at the end of the reporting period which have been past due over
90 days are not considered as in default by considering the expected subsequent
and historical repayment from trade debtors.

For the year ended 31st March, 2021 and 2020, the Group performed impairment
assessment on financial assets other than trade receivables and concluded that
the probability of default of the counterparty is insignificant and accordingly, no

allowance for ECL is provided.

The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL that has been recognised

for trade receivables under the simplified approach.

Lifetime ECL

(credit-impaired)

T HATEHA

EEER

(BfEERE)

HK$°000

T

As at 1st April, 2019 -
Impairment losses recognised 3,995
As at 31st March, 2020 3,995
Impairment losses recognised 1,466
As at 31st March, 2021 5,461
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Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains a level
of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the management to finance the
Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The
management monitors the utilisation of secured bank borrowings (as detailed
in note 24) to ensure unutilised banking facilities are adequate and ensures
compliance with loan covenants or to obtain waiver from the relevant banks if the
Group is not able to satisfy any of the covenant requirements. As at 31st March,
2021, the Group has available unutilised banking facilities of HK$84,405,000
(2020: HK$86,391,000).

The Group incurred a net loss of HK$184,882,000 (2020: HK$258,448,000)
from operations for the year ended 31st March, 2021, and the Group’s current
liabilities exceeded its current assets by HK$256,022,000 (2020: HK$182,064,000)
as at 31st March, 2021. Further, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of
HK$47,114,000 (2020: HK$26,476,000) with total borrowings due within one year
or contain a repayable on demand clause amounted to HK$389,494,000 (2020:
HK$420,059,000).
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Liquidity risk (Continued)

The Group successfully renewed banking facilities that were due during the year.
In addition, the directors of the Company have evaluated the Group’s current
undrawn banking facilities and renewable bank borrowings. The management
maintains continuous communication with the Group’s principal banks on the on-
going loan covenant compliance, monitoring the maturity of bank borrowings
as well as the increase of banking facilities or redemption of existing debt. The
directors of the Company have evaluated all the relevant facts available to them
and reviewed the Group’s bank borrowings and banking facilities available to the
Group. They are of the opinion that the bank loans and banking facilities would
be renewed when their current terms expire. Up to the date of approval of these
consolidated financial statements for issuance, the directors of the Company are
not aware of any intention of the Group’s principal banks to withdraw their banking
facilities granted or request early repayment of the utilised facilities within the next

twelve months from the end of the reporting period.

Despite uncertainties mentioned in note 2, the directors of the Company consider
that, after taking into account the cash and cash equivalents, existing banking
facilities and cash flows to be generated from operations, that the Group will have
sufficient funds to meet its financial obligations for at least the next twelve months
from the date of approval of these consolidated financial statements.

The following tables detail the Group’s contractual maturity for its non-derivative
financial liabilities. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash
flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. Specifically, bank borrowings containing a repayment on demand
clause are included in the earliest time band regardless of the probability of the
banks choosing to exercise their rights. The maturity dates for other non-derivative
financial liabilities are based on the agreed repayment dates.
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35. &@@mITA(E 35. Financial Instruments (Continued)

b). BHEEREEBZKRE (b). Financial risk management objectives and policies
R(E) (Continued)

T E 2R (&) Liquidity risk (Continued)

HWEBEFNERASEESRE o« BFZR The tables include both interest and principal cash flows. To the extent that interest

EAZHF R - BIRFTE S AL ARREH flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curve

Rz =i - at the end of the reporting period.

RZB=-F
RERS AEREL =ZA=+-H
TR = PR-F RELH ZREE
Weighted  On demand Total Carrying
average orlessthan —FZ@E  WEZEF undiscounted amount
interest rate lyear 1to2years 2toSyears  cashflows at31.3.2021
Bk TRT TRR TER TER TER
% HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
—E--& 2021
FITESREE Non-derivative financial liabilities
ENESTIAREMEMTZIE Trade and other payables - 16,391 - - 16,391 16,391
BERBIEE Secured bank borrowings
—28 - variable rate 2.57 389,494 - - 389,494 389,494
HEaRE Lease liabilities 2.56 117,877 38,340 3,781 159,998 155,316
523,762 38,340 3,781 565,883 561,201
=55
REX AMERE =RA=t-H
T A= PR—F mERE ZERHE
Weighted ~ On demand Total Carrying
average  orlessthan  —FZEWF  WFEZAF undiscounted amount
interest rate lyear lto2years 2to5years  cashflows at31.3.2020
BN TAT TER TET TEL TET
% HKS$'000 HK$°000 HKS$000 HKS$000 HK$000
—Z-%F 2020
FITESRBRE Non-derivative financial liabilities
[ENE SFUE R EfERTFE Trade and other payables = 33,491 = = 33,491 33,491
BEARTEE Secured bank borrowings
—%8 — variable rate 341 420,059 - - 420,059 420,059
HEaE Lease liabilities 3.91 165,192 92,493 33,326 291,011 275,433
618,742 92,493 33,326 744,561 728,983
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Liquidity risk (Continued)

Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are included in the “on
demand or less than 1 month” time band in the above maturity analysis. As at 31st
March, 2021, the aggregate carrying amounts of these bank borrowings amounted
to HK$389,494,000 (2020: HK$420,059,000). Taking into account the Group’s
financial position, the directors of the Company do not believe that it is probable
that the banks will exercise their discretionary rights to demand immediate
repayment. The directors believe that such bank borrowings will be repaid
within fourteen years (2020: fifteen years) after the end of the reporting period
in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements,
details of which are set out in the table below:

BRI - AR RRERERR LA EE(RBERAAH2S)

Maturity Analysis - Bank horrowings with a repayment on demand clause based on scheduled repayments

REXY ARRE
HR-ER ZERE-% BENE REEH BEE
On demand or Total
lessthan ~ —Z={&A 3 months -ERE fAZEE  Morethan undiscounted Carrying
I'month  1to3 months tolyear  Ito2years  2to5 years Syears  cash outflow amount
TEn TER THL ThEr Th ThL T THL
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$000 HKS’000 HKS"000 HKS'000 HK$000
ZEC-FZA=f-H  3lstMarch, 2021 294,399 21,233 12931 16,97 29,086 27,164 401,810 389,494
“E-FEZA=F-H  3lstMarch, 2020 291,467 26,094 31,152 14,765 4,719 31,628 437,898 420,059

CREENERABZAFEEDNRRE
FRASRENMEBRAZ EERAE
E - MABDERGABEASRRRZ ST
ZEERBRZIFTIRE -

RRAEERR  NEAUBRRINAE
HERAZEMEERTHBEREESR
HAFEERE -

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined in
accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow
analysis, with most significant inputs being the discount rate that reflects the credit
risk of counterparties.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets
and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial

statements approximate their fair values.
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36. METHFFELEEEZ 36. Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
R activities

TRV AEEAREEHRELABZ The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising from financing
BEFS  BEEESNIFBESES - @& activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from
EEFIEAZBEANBHBERAER 2 financing activities are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will
GEARESRERDEAREETHAERES be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows
MEZBSREXAKRRSREMEL 2  from financing activities.

8-
BEA St
BITEE FEEX
Secured Accrued EARE HESE
bank interest Dividend Lease fote)
borrowings expenses payable liabilities Total
THT FTEr FET THEL THL
HK$°000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
RZZE-NEMA—AH At Ist April, 2019 (265,590) (258) - (277,892) (543,740)
MERSFRE Financing cash flows, net (154,469) 13,968 2,518 179,356 41,373
BRI RFRE BETNHAE New lease entered/lease modified - _ _ (165,450) (165,450)
BRANEZKE Dividends recognised as distribution - - (2,518) - (2,518)
FHREEE Non-cash changes
BHERMBAK AR Finance costs recognised - (14,138) = (11,447) (25,585)
RZZ-_TFE=FA=1+—H At 31st March, 2020 (420,059) (428) - (275,433) (695,920)
RMERSFRE Financing cash flows, net 30,565 9,947 - 152,657 193,169
SIMFEE BBITHAE New lease entered/lease
modified - - - (26,849) (26,849)
FREEH Non-cash changes
BEREANMEKAR Finance costs recognised - (9,747) - (5,691) (15,438)
R=B=-F=B=1-§ At 31st March, 2021 (389,494) (228) - (155316)  (545,038)
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Financial Summary

RE RESULTS
BE=A=1+-HLEE
Year ended 31st March,
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
TR THT TR TAT T
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$°000
EE 1] REVENUE 2,017,450 1,928,320 1,693,426 1,042,397 517,246
BRBiAI (518 B A (LOSS) PROFIT BEFORE TAX (21,975) 9,280 (71,017) (255,678) (179,319)
AEHREX INCOME TAX EXPENSE (3,919) (4,018) (8,334) (2,770) (5,563)
FE(ER) & (LOSS) PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (25,894) 5,262 (79,351) (258,448) (184,882)
5 ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
EEHAE
R=A=t+-8
At 31st March,
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
FHET T T FHx T
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
EEAR TOTAL ASSETS 1,095,091 1,098,561 1,022,851 1,129,530 812,025
SEAE TOTAL LIABILITIES (395,644) (379,656) (393,021) (775,166) (615,609)
RRES SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS 699,447 718,905 629,830 354,364 196,416
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